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Abbreviations
fEis

In this annual report, the following abbreviations have the following RAERA @ X ERA I - 5T

meanings unless otherwise specified: BEUTERE -

“Articles of Association” articles of association of the Company

[BRETRMA | t AARZEHERMER

“Board” Board of Directors of the Company

[EFg] B ADRRIZEE®

“Company” Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited

EAVYNCIN & IREEEIFRIERBR AR

“Companies Ordinance” Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong

INCIRESEN B BEEGFE62E

"Directors” directors of the Company

[E%] B ARRIZEF

“Group” the Company and its subsidiaries

[&EE ] B ARRKEKEBAR

“Listing Rules” Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

[ R Al B BRMEFLEMARR

“PRC" The People’s Republic of China

[ E | ' FEARKENEH

“SFO" Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)

(% M HEAE 5] B FEFRBAEGHN(EBEMELN E)

“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

[ Bg6 22 Py | B BEBESRZMARRAR]

“HK$"” and “HK cent” Hong Kong dollar(s) and cent, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

[FB7T] & 7840 B BEEEWN BEEETES

“US$” United States dollar(s), the lawful currency of the United States of
America

E ¥  Ex ZEOEEE

O 0% per cent.
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Chairman’s Statement
EHFEE

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present to the annual report
Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “"Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year").

OVERVIEW

The Group principally engaged in sales of materials businesses
and properties investment in Hong Kong and the People’s of
Republic of China (the “PRC").

During the Year, the Group’'s revenue increased by
approximately 495.4% to approximately HK$321.8 million from
approximately HK$54.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 (the “Previous Year”). The increase was mainly driven by
the sales of aluminum related products and scrapped copper to
overseas customers since early 2021 and received recurring
orders for the supply of copper materials in the PRC.

The Group recorded a loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$357.8 million for the Year
(Previous Year: HK$25.8 million) was mainly contributed by the
impairment losses of receivables of HK$340.3 million during the
Year.

PROSPECTS

The unexpected outbreak of the COVID-19 has brought
unprecedented impact to the world economy. Strong demand
and tight capacity in freight markets is likely to persist, the
shipping and logistics prices is bracing inflationary pressure in
2022. Price volatility on industrial metals and other commodities
add uncertainty as fallout from Russia’s invasion into Ukraine
spreads across global markets.

The Group will closely monitor the exposure to the risks and
uncertainties in connection with COVID-19 and political
environment, and assess and react proactively to its impacts on
the financial position and results of the Group and will continue
to adopt stringent cost and risk management measures to
guard against heightened uncertainty in the operating
landscape.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

EREWE (&)

The Company has been continuously reviewing its business
operations and financial position for the purpose of formulating
business plans and strategies for its future business
development, which would enable the Group not only to
develop its existing business divisions but also to capture
business opportunities, diversify its businesses and broaden its
income sources. The Company will endeavour to allocate its
resources in an efficient and effective manner and in the best
interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

APPRECIATION

Our continued success depends on all our staff's commitment,
dedication and professionalism. The Board would also like to
thank every member of our staff for their diligence and
dedication and to express our sincere appreciation to our
shareholders, business partners, clients and suppliers for their
continuous and valuable support.

Li Gang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THREERR S

BUSINESS REVIEW

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
principally engaged in sales of materials businesses and
properties investment in Hong Kong and the People’s of
Republic of China (the “PRC").

Sales of materials business

Since 2017, the Group commenced the sales of materials
business in the PRC, the materials mainly include aluminum,
steel products, timber logs, base metals, etc., which are
primarily used at the early stages of construction projects or for
manufacturing of building or surfacing materials.

The business provided steady income for the Group until it
experienced a downturn in 2019 and 2020. To refine its
business, the Group established warehouses in the PRC in early
2021 with inventory management to provide products readily
available for its customers. The warehouses are in close
proximity to major ports and its customers and suppliers in the
PRC, which may (i) allow the Group to respond to customers’
orders in a timely manner; and (ii) provide inventory
management services to customers, such as procurement,
inventory storage and delivery.

In late 2020, the Group started to expand its customer base to
international aluminum products manufacturers by leveraging
its foundation in sourcing aluminum ingots.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”), the
sales of materials contributed a revenue of approximately
HK$321.1 million (year ended 31 December 2020 (the
“Previous Year"): HK$53.6 million), representing 99.8% of
total revenue (Previous Year: 99.1%).

The significant increase in sales of materials during the Year
was mainly attributed to (i) the Group successfully became
approved suppliers for certain leading international aluminum
companies in early 2021; and (i) the Group continued to receive
recurring orders for the supply of copper materials from
reputable metal companies in the PRC.

Properties investment

The Group's investment properties comprise certain
commercial units and lands situated in Yingkou city, Liaoning
province, the PRC. During the Year, the Group’s rental income
amounted to approximately HK$0.8 million were generated
from properties investment (Previous Year: HK$0.5 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

THEF RS (§)

BUSINESS PROSPECTS AND FUTURE PLANS

In early 2021, the establishment of warehouses in the PRC and
commencement of inventory management, allow the Group to
quickly respond to the demand of its customers and further
strengthen the Group’s capability to act as a one-stop building

materials supplier for its customers.

With the experience accumulated in the aluminum industry, the
Group became aware that major international aluminum
products manufacturers have increasing interests in aluminum
related products from the PRC as their pricing are generally
more competitive as compared to other origins. Since late
2020, the Group began to supply aluminum related products,
including but not limited to, copper, magnesium and silicon
which are essential for the production of aluminum alloy. In
early 2021, the Group successfully became approved suppliers
for certain leading international aluminum companies.

As the Group has successfully entered into the aluminum
supply chain industry with satisfactory results in its supply of
aluminum related products in the PRC and overseas, the Group
is ready to harness its business networks and experience to
transform from a supply of aluminum related products business
to a comprehensive aluminum related products and building
materials supplier with the inclusion of more value-added

services, the prospect looks promising.

The global economy is in an undulating recovery and it holds a
prudent but positive attitude toward the market’'s development
in 2022 thanks to government'’s strict prevention and control
measures and its experience containing the pandemic. The
evolving pandemic will remain the biggest uncertainty the
Group will face in 2022. The Group will continue to closely
monitor the development and the Group’s exposure to the risks
and uncertainties in connection with COVID-19, and assess and
react proactively to its impacts on the financial position and

results of the Group.

However, the Group have been struggling to cope with
spiralling shipping costs since the outbreak of COVID-19 which
caused by the global shipping container shortage and disruption
from lockdowns as well as the economic fallout from the
pandemic. With high shipping demand still outweighing
restricted capacity in the freight sector, the freight forwarders
have negotiating power to increase shipping rates. Global
shipping rates would not stabilise until the market disruptions
brought on by the pandemic get addressed.

Also, price volatility on industrial metals and other commodities
add uncertainty as fallout from Russia’s invasion into Ukraine
spreads across global markets. The Group will closely monitor
the situation and continuously reviewing its business operations
and financial position for the purpose of formulating business
plans and strategies for its future business development, which
would enable the Group not only to develop its existing
business divisions but also to capture business opportunities,
diversify its businesses and broaden its income sources. The
Company will endeavour to allocate its resources in an efficient
and effective manner and in the best interest of the Group and

its shareholders as a whole.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

THEF RS (1§)

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$321.8 million (Previous Year: HK$54.1 million), representing
an increase by 495.4% when compared with the Previous Year.
The significant increase in revenue was mainly due to sales of
aluminum related products and scrap copper to overseas
customers since early 2021 and received recurring orders for
the supply of copper materials in the PRC.

Gross profit

The Group's gross profit for the Year significantly increased by
HK$15.3 million to approximately HK$15.9 million (Previous
Year: HK$0.6 million). The overall gross profit margin increased
from 1.1% for the Previous Year to 4.9% for the Year, which
mainly due to the higher gross profit margin for sales of
aluminum related products and scrap copper to overseas
customers since early 2021 for the purpose of expanding the
Group's client portfolio.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses mainly include freight and
transportation expenses, staff costs and other selling and
distribution expenses.

During the Year, the selling and distribution expenses amounted
to approximately HK$7.6 million (Previous Year: Nil) mainly
include freight and transportation expenses for sales of
aluminum related products and scrap copper to overseas
customers since early 2021.

Administrative and operating expenses

The Group'’s administrative and operating expenses mainly
consisted of (i) staff costs; (ii) depreciation; (iii) legal and
professional fee; (iv) office and utility expenses; and (v) other
administrative expenses.

Administrative and operating expenses decreased by HK$3.1
million or 17.2% from HK$18.0 million for the Previous Year to
HK$14.9 million for the Year, which was mainly due to (i) absent
of depreciation of right-of-use assets during the Year due to
expiry of tenancy agreement without renewal in 2021 (Previous
Year: HK$2.5 million); and (ii) decrease in staff costs to HK$5.9
million during the Year (Previous Year: HK$8.5 million).

Fair value change on investment properties

The Group's investment properties comprise certain
commercial units and lands situated in Yingkou city, Liaoning
province, the PRC. The valuation was carried out by an
independent professional valuer, on the basis of market value.
The Group recorded fair value loss on investment properties
amounted to HK$13.9 million and HK$2.0 million for the Year
and the Previous Year respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

THEF RS (§)

Impairment losses of receivables, net

As disclosed in the 2020 Annual Report, the auditor of the
Company (the "Auditor”) issued a qualified opinion on
recoverability on certain receivables, which consist of (1)
prepayments of approximately RMB262.5 million (equivalently
to HK$311.9 million) made by Qianhai Shitong Supply Chain
(Shenzhen) Company Limited* (BT/& @4t ESE ORI B R AF])
(“Qianhai Shitong”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, in relation to certain building materials to its suppliers
in 2018 (the "Prepayments”); and (2) trade receivables of
RMB16.3 million (equivalent to HK$19.4 million) in relation to (i)
sales of building materials recorded by Qianhai Shitong; and (ii)
rental agreements entered into by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2018 (the “Trade Receivables”).

After the reorganisation of the Board on 29 June 2020, the
Company has at its best endeavors, taken numerous measures
in recovering the outstanding Prepayments and Trade
Receivables. In early September 2020, the Company has
through its PRC lawyer issued letters to the respective
counterparties in demanding immediate repayment of the
outstanding Prepayments and Trade Receivables.

Based on the legal opinion issued by the PRC lawyer prior to
the publication of the annual results of the Company for the
Previous Year, there was no evidence on majority of the
counterparties of the Prepayments and Trade Receivables that
they are lack of financial capability in repaying the respective
Prepayments and Trade Receivables, it was premature to
evaluate their recoverability which may subject to the outcome
of any negotiations or litigations and yet to materialise.

Nevertheless, as the majority of the Prepayments and the Trade
Receivables were conducted by Qianhai Shitong, the Group
may only commence legal actions against the counterparties
upon the completion of the Nullification (as defined below) by
the relevant authority, no provision of impairment was therefore
made in the Previous Year.

In July 2021, the Nullification was completed and the Group
then further consulted with the PRC lawyer to assess the
feasibility of commencing litigation against the counterparties.
However, based on the legal opinion issued by the PRC lawyer
in December 2021, (i) the counterparties do not seem to
maintain fixed assets which may be served as means of debt
recovery; (i) certain of the counterparties had unfulfilled court
orders; (iii) the counterparties’ financial position may have
deteriorated as they may have an associated relationship with
Mr. Li Sen, the former director of the Company, who is facing
criminal charge. In addition, the legal proceeding to recover the
outstanding balances could be cost-ineffective. As such, it may
not be meaningful for the Group to commence litigation against
such counterparties.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

THEF RS (1§)

Despite the management has taken proactive actions to recover
the outstanding balances from these parties, however, the
management of the Group was uncertain and was not
optimistic whether the Group is able to recover the outstanding
balances from these parties and accordingly the Group has
recognised an impairment charge on the Prepayments and
Trade Receivables of HK$316.6 million and HK$19.7 million
respectively during the Year (Previous Year: Nil).

Loss for the year

As a result of the foregoing, loss for the Year attributable to the
owners of the Company was approximately HK$357.8 million
(Previous Year: HK$25.8 million).

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximize the value of its shareholders (the
“Shareholders”).

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the amount of dividend payment to the Shareholders, issue
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new shares, obtain bank and other borrowings, or sell assets to  &EZ&EURLVBE °
reduce debt.
As at 31 December 2021, all other borrowings, shareholder's RZZEZ—F+_-_A=+—"H  XAEBFMAE
loan and loan from a fellow subsidiary of the Group bore fixed HhEZ - H”%fﬁfé{&;}(@ BIEE =
interest rates, the maturity and currency profile are set out as 75’]% KREEMEGTE - A RER
follows: ERET T ¢
Within 1 year 2nd year Total
—FR BZHE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT FHT
Renminbi AR - 216,324 216,324
Hong Kong Dollar BT 30,220 - 30,220
United States Dollar =T 198 - 198
30,418 216,324 246,742
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. AREERIFEERBEL X EF% B o ;L=
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net Eigzﬁr%{iﬁfu%/\i@%ﬁ o SRaRE IR

debt is calculated as the sum of other borrowings,
shareholder’s loan and loan from a fellow subsidiary, less bank
and cash balances. Total equity represents total equity as
shown on the consolidated statement of financial position of
the Group. As at 31 December 2021, the Group's gearing ratio
was 107.6% (31 December 2020: 36.2%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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As at 31 December 2021, the debt-to-equity ratio and net debt
to equity ratio of the Group, which were calculated by dividing
total interest-bearing debt by total equity and dividing total
interest-bearing debt less bank and cash balances by total
equity, were 111.6% (31 December 2020: 36.9%) and 107.6%
(31 December 2020: 36.2%) respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, the equity attributable to the owners
of the Company decreased to approximately HK$221.1 million
(31 December 2020: HK$569.7 million) which was mainly due
to the operating loss during the Year. As at 31 December 2021,
the Group's current assets and current liabilities amounted to
approximately HK$381.9 million and HK$117.4 million
respectively (31 December 2020: HK$696.7 million and
HK$99.0 million), of which approximately HK$8.9 million (31
December 2020: HK$4.0 million) was bank and cash balances.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had bank and cash
balances of approximately HK$8.9 million (31 December 2020:
HK$4.0 million), of which approximately 10%, 17% and 73% (31
December 2020: 41%, 15% and 44%) were denominated in
United States Dollar (“US$"”), Renminbi (“RMB") and Hong
Kong Dollar (“HK$") respectively.

The Group’s current ratio, calculated based on current assets
over current liabilities, was 3.3 at 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020: 7.0).

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of bank and cash balances deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on
funds generated from operations and fund raising activities.

With the amount of liquid assets on hand and unutilised loan
facility, the management is of the view that the Group has
sufficient financial resources to meet its ongoing operational
needs.

Charge on Group Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the investment properties of the
Group with carrying amount of approximately HK$172.5 million
(31 December 2020: HK$181.2 million) were pledged to secure
certain other borrowings. Save for the above, the Group did not
have any charges on its assets.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group operates mainly in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
For the operations in Mainland China, the transactions are
mostly denominated in RMB. Minimal exposure to fluctuation
in exchange rates is expected. For the operations in Hong Kong,
most of the transactions are denominated in HK$ and USS$.
Since the exchange rate of US$ against HK$ is pegged to each
other under the Linked Exchange Rate System, the exposure to
fluctuation in exchange rates will only arise from the translation
to the presentation currency of the Group. The Group did not
resort to any currency hedging facility for the Year. However,
the management will monitor the Group's foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have significant
capital commitments (31 December 2020: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have significant
contingent liabilities (31 December 2020: Nil).

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 19
employees in Hong Kong and the PRC (31 December 2020: 16
employees). Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
amounted to approximately HK$5.9 million for the Year
(Previous Year: HK$8.5 million). The Group implements
remuneration policy, bonus and share options schemes to
ensure that pay scales of its employees are rewarded on
performance-related basis within the general framework of the
Group's remuneration strategy.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries
and affiliated companies during the Year.

The Group had no significant investments held during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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MATERIAL EVENTS
Update on listing status

On 18 December 2020, the Company has received a letter from
the Stock Exchange notifying the Company of its decision that
the Company has failed to carry out a business with sufficient
level of operations as required under Rule 13.24 of the Listing
Rules to warrant the continued listing of its shares (the
“Decision”). Pursuant to Rules 2B.06(1) and 2B.08(1) of the
Listing Rules, the Company submitted a written request for the
Decision to be referred to the Listing Committee of the Stock
Exchange for review on 13 January 2021 (the “Review”). On
18 May 2021, the Company received a letter from the Listing
Committee in upholding the Decision (the “LC Decision”). On
27 May 2021, the Company submitted a written request to the
Listing Review Committee pursuant to Rule 2B.06(2) of the
Listing Rules for reviewing of the LC Decision (the “Second
Review"). The Listing Review Committee may endorse, modify
or vary the LC Decision or make its own decision.

On 14 September 2021, the Company received a decision letter
from the Listing (Review) Committee (the “Decision Letter”)
which upheld the decision of the Listing Committee and
concluded that having assessed the Company’s case under
Rule 13.24 of the Listing Rules as set out in the Decision Letter,
the Company has failed to maintain a sufficient level of
operations as required under Rule 13.24 of the Listing Rules to
warrant the continued listing of its shares.

On 19 October 2021, the Company received a letter (the
“Letter”) from the Stock Exchange, in which, among other
things, the Stock Exchange sets out the following resumption
guidance (the “Resumption Guidance"”) for the Company:

1. demonstrate its compliance with Rule 13.24 of the Listing
Rules; and

2. announce all material information for the Company's
shareholders and investors to appraise the Company's
position.

The Letter also states that the Company must remedy the
issues causing its trading suspension and fully comply with the
Listing Rules to the Stock Exchange's satisfaction before
trading in its securities is allowed to resume. For this purpose,
the Company has the primary responsibility to devise its action
plan for resumption. The Stock Exchange further indicates that
it may modify or supplement the Resumption Guidance if the
Company’s situation changes. For further details, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 20 December
2020, 7 January 2021, 15 January 2021, 18 May 2021, 27 May
2021, 15 September 2021 and 21 October 2021.
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Should there be any material development of this matter,
further announcement(s) will be made by the Company as and
when appropriate and in accordance with the requirements of
the Listing Rules.

Unauthorised change in shareholding of a subsidiary of
the Company

In August 2020, the Board has discovered (i) the suspected
forgery or unauthorised use of the company chop of Qianhai
Shitong Supply Chain (Shenzhen) Company Limited* (B8 tti@
#ESE (Jx31) AR A]), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company (the “Qianhai Shitong”); (ii) the suspected
forgery of the company chop of Sincere Venture Limited, a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Sincere
Venture”); and (iii) the suspected forged signature of Mr. Wei
Junging, former director of Sincere Venture and former chief
executive officer of the Company (collectively referred to as the
"Suspected Forgeries”).

As a result of the Suspected Forgeries, the Company's
shareholding in Qianhai Shitong has been diluted from 100% to
25%, where new shares were issued by Qianhai Shitong to
Shenzhen Aquatic Products Co., Ltd* ORI T K E B R A 7))
("Shenzhen Aquatic”), an independent third party (the
“Unauthorised Dilution”). As a result of the Unauthorised
Dilution, the purported shareholding structure of Qianhai
Shitong was owned as to 75% by Shenzhen Aquatic and 25%
by the Group at the material time.

In September 2020, the Board has reported the case to Market
Supervision Administration of Shenzhen Municipality* (&I H
HEREIRRF) (the “SZ Market Supervision Administration”)
in relation to withdrawing and nullifying the Unauthorised

Dilution (the “Nullification”).

In July 2021, upon completion of the Nullification by the SZ
Market Supervision Administration, the Group has regained the
legal ownership and company chop.

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 26 August 2020, 14 September 2020 and 6
August 2021.

b For identification purpose only and should not be regarded as the official
English translation of the Chinese names. In the event of any inconsistency,
the Chinese name prevails
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RISK FACTORS

The Group has identified and is facing a number of significant
risks during the year ended 31 December 2021. Some of these
risks are ongoing factors which the industry has to cope with in
medium to long term. Other risk factors are specific to the
Group.

1. Economic Risk

The Group's business are closely related to the changes in
business, competitive, regulatory, or economic
environment in which the Group operates, which may
have significant impact to the Group's financial
performance and conditions.

a. The global economic conditions and the state of
international financial and investment markets,
including the economy, financial and investment
markets of the United States, Mainland China and
Hong Kong, of which the Group has no control, have
significant influences on the business and financial
performance of the Group. The management policy
to mitigate this risk is to diversify the Group’'s
business and to diversify its investments (where
possible) within the same business.

b. The Group's business could be adversely affected by
the outbreaks of contagious diseases such as the
COVID-19 or other diseases that may affect the
livelihood of people. Travel restrictions and
quarantine control may negatively affect the
economic demand of commodities and productivity
of the workforce, which may adversely affect the
financial performance and financial position of the
Group. The Group will continue to implement
workplace controls and cost control measures to
minimize any adverse impact arising from any
outbreak of diseases.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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RISK FACTORS (Continued)

2.

Market Risk

The Group's existing businesses are operating in a
competitive environment that puts pressure on the
revenue and profitability of this business. The
management policy to mitigate this risk is to continue to
put effort in enlarging the market share and enhancing the
market competitiveness of these businesses by various
means.

Environmental Risk

The Group is constantly exposed to inherent risks such as
pollution, mechanical breakdown of machinery, adverse
weather conditions, fire or other calamity. Any of these
factors may cause disruptions to the Group’s operations.
The Group may also be liable for compensation payable as
a result of these unpredictable events which may
adversely affect its financial performance.

Customer Risk

The Group has been relied on a small number of
customers in its existing businesses. This has been
limiting the Group's bargaining power on credit terms and
discount rate. The Group may not be able to significantly
expand its customer base in the short term which may
adversely affect its financial performance.

Financial Risk

The Group is exposed to financial risks relating to foreign
currency, interest rate, equity price, liquidity and credit risk
in its ordinary course of business. For further details of
such risks and relevant management policies, please refer
to Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements for
details.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management of the Group are aware,
the Group has complied in material respects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group. During the year ended 31
December 2021, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to
meet its immediate and long-term business goals. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, there were no significant
dispute between the Group and its employees, customers and
suppliers.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. In order to
reduce the degree of environmental damage when developing
the Group's business, the Group strictly complies with the local
laws, rules and guidance in relation to environmental protection.
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Corporate Governance Report
ERELIRE

The Company is committed to attaining and maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance, the principles of which are to
uphold integrity, transparency and accountability in all aspects
of business and to ensure that affairs are conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. It is believed
that good corporate governance is fundamental to the success
of the Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’
value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company had complied with all the applicable code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2021.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ dealing in the Company’s securities (the “Own
Code") on terms no less exacting than the required standard
set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers. Specific enquiries have been made
with the Directors and they have confirmed their compliance
with the Own Code during the year ended 31 December 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six
directors, including three Executive Directors, namely Mr. Li
Gang (Chairman), Mr. Pan Lihui and Mr. Jiang Senlin and three
Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INED(s)”, and each
an “INED"), namely Mr. Zhong Jian, Mr. Du Hongwei and Mr.
Liu Qin. Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Directors Profile” section of this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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To the best knowledge of the Directors, save for the aforesaid,
there is no other financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships between the Chairman and among
members of the Board.

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year. The
attendance of individual director at the regular Board meetings
and general meetings during the years ended 31 December
2021 is set out in the following table:

SAEZFTRA - R EXPATRSN  EENRER
SKE BB EANREMHTE X5 B
REMEE FARRE o

ETeTHESFRELBTEREE - TK
G EEREE T - —F+-_A=1+—
HIEFERTzESSMSRBREREZH
fERCER

Number of attendance

HEIRE
Board General
Meetings Meetings
Exeeld BRRAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Gang (Chairman) L& (FE) 77 0/1
Mr. Pan Lihui BV IR 77 171
Mr. Jiang Senlin ERMEE 717 0N
Independent Non-executive Directors BV EHTEE
Mr. Zhong Jian BRI E 6/7 0N
Mr. Du Hongwei HEELEE 6/7 0/1
Mr. Liu Qin BlREAE 1/2 N/ANE
(appointed on 9 July 2021) (RZZE=_—F+ANLBEZRE)
Mr. See Tak Wah MBI & 5/5 0/1
(resigned on 9 July 2021) (RZE=_—F+BNBEE)
Mr. Li Jinyuan EX e N/A 7@ N/A 738 F
(resigned on 15 March 2021) (R—ZE-—F=A+RABET)
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors have
participated in the approval of routine and operational matters
of the Company by way of written resolutions circulated to
them together with supporting documents and briefings from
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”). The Directors receive at least 14 days' prior
written notice of a regular Board meeting and may propose
matters for discussion to be included in the agenda. The agenda
together with board papers are sent to the Directors at least
three days prior to a regular Board meeting.

The Board, led by the Chairman, approves and monitors the
Group's business strategies and policies, strategic decisions
and directions, annual budget, and other major corporate
matters. Besides, the Board delegated the management team,
with the authority and responsibility for the daily operations and
administration of the Group.

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed. The Board is briefed on all
legislative, regulatory and corporate governance developments
and has regarded to them when making decisions. The
Company Secretary, together with the Board, are also directly
responsible for the Group’s compliance with the continuing
obligations of listed issuers under the Listing Rules, the Codes
on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs, the
Companies Ordinance, the SFO and other applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three INEDs with at least one INED
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. In addition, more
than one-third of the composition of the Board consisted of
INEDs, so there is strong element of independence in the
Board to exercise independent judgment. The Company has
received from each INED an annual written confirmation of his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all of the INEDs have met the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with terms of the
guidelines.

The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in
respect of the Directors’ liability.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the position of the chairman of the Board was
held by Mr. Li Gang and the position of the chief executive
officer was held by Mr. Wei Junging. As disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 11 June 2021, Mr. Wei
Junging was resigned as the chief executive officer of the
Company with effect from 26 May 2021. Following his
resignation, the board has not yet appointed a new chief
executive of the Company. Accordingly, the duties of the chief
executive have since then been undertaken by the executive
Directors. The Board will keep reviewing the current structure
of the Board and the need of appointment of a suitable
candidate to perform the role of chief executive. Appointment
will be made to fill the post to comply with code provision A.2.1
of the Code if necessary.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a
term of twelve months and subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All Directors must keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities. Any newly appointed Directors would receive
an induction package covering the Group’s businesses and the
statutory regulatory obligations of a director of a listed
company. All Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Directors are continually
updated on developments in statutory and regulatory regime
and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. The Company has provided timely technical
updates, including the briefing on the amendments on the
Listing Rules and the news released published by the Stock
Exchange to the Directors. Continuing briefings and
professional development for the Directors are arranged where
necessary.

EFRERTHRER

BIETEMEXXEA2. 111G TR ETHRAE
MABEERD W T EH— ARBIRE -
REE_ZT-_—F+_A=+—HIFE"
EESERZBMATREEETRITEE
H—BRETEEET - FuA a8 H
BB —FRNAT—HHRAEMEE B
BEEAEEBIARNITHER 8-
T—FRA-HNBBEAR - REERE
BEESHARTHARRFITHRER - Fitt
TRARZBEEARTEEAE -EF
RFERNESSNEIEEULESS
BRIABARETTRER - NEZEER
BNE - KQNEHEERTEEA2.1I§E
R E LR B 22 R o

ZEBVFHNTESNFY

BIUFATESNREFHRT_MER - I
ARBASERANBESREIEEET -

EERIIRERER

FRIEESHARMBERERE - TMEX
E2EEKWE —EREER X CRER
SEZEBEREMRARESTSZATEER
)  ARRXBAEEZ2RRFEFTXSR
B AR RIEE RS < MM iEE - EF
FERRHARERNREETIE R EBRR
BREMEN  UBHESETRE - A
RAEERRAEFRESTORMEER -
B ETRANERT Z LB X A 2 SR 3%
ffi e RABINEFTEREREFLIEERD
BRERER -

ENVIRO ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2021 ANNUAL REPORT



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

ERELIRE ()

In compliance with the Code Provision A.6.5 during the year
ended 31 December 2021, Directors have provided with
reading materials to keep them informed of the latest updates
in the relevant market and changes on the legal and regulatory
environment. The records of the training received by the
respective Directors are kept and updated by the Company
Secretarial department.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, upon the resignation of Mr. Ho Wai Kuen (“Mr.
Ho") as the Company Secretary on 12 June 2021, Mr. Ng Yu
Ho (“Mr. Ng") was appointed as the Company Secretary in
place of Mr. Ho. The primary contact person at the Company
during the year with Mr. Ho and Mr. Ng was Mr. Li Gang, the
Chairman to the Board.

During the year, Mr. Ho and Mr. Ng were responsible for
providing advice to the Board on corporate governance matters.
Mr. Ho and Mr. Ng had confirmed that each of them has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the

independent auditor provided the following audit and non-audit
services to the Company with remunerations as follows:
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established several committees. The authority
and duties of the Audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”), Remuneration Committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the Nomination Committee
of the Company (the “Nomination Committee") are set out in
written terms of reference which are of no less exacting terms
than those set out in the CG Code. The terms of reference of all
committees are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company respectively. All committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
comprises three INEDs, namely, Mr. Zhong Jian, Mr. Du
Hongwei and Mr. Liu Qin, with Mr. Liu Qin as the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and the effectiveness
of the Group's internal controls and risk management. The
Audit Committee meets at least twice a year in reviewing the
interim and annual reports of the Company before submission
to the Board for approval.

The Audit Committee meets regularly with management and
external auditors and reviews their reports. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee met three
times in reviewing the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020 and the unaudited condensed
consolidated financial information for the six months ended 30
June 2021. The record of attendance of each member at the
committee meetings is set out below.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises three INEDs, namely, Mr. Zhong Jian,
Mr. Du Hongwei and Mr. Pan Lihui, with Mr. Zhong Jian as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee should consult with the chairman
on its remuneration proposals for other Executive Directors,
and may access to independent professional advice if
necessary. The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include, among others, the recommendation to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy, the
review and approval of management’'s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives,
and the determination, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Director.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended
31 December 2021 to review and approve the remuneration
packages of Directors. During the process, no individual director
was involved in decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.
The record of attendance of each member at the committee
meetings is set out below.

FMEES

RAFHRAH  FHEEEh =B
TER(AERIEE  HREBREENELE
FEAEER - MERIEERFMEES LR -

R B 2R EMATETOH I EERE
AEF MERER FHZEerSREY
BEXER -FMZESZIEZREA(EF
BRIMAAFL2BESTNHFMHER LR
B AR IER M BB RAENRRF IR
FHBCRAEFEREER  YRAEESS
PReT 7781 M B R mmas MbEE IR B M
HiEE - WREEEEERAL  BEEM
BIBMITE S HFENFE -

FHEEeREE T —F+_A=+—
HIEFERITT —ASHEAEHRMEES
ZEHMES c L BETERNESLEE
TEARAGZHM  SHKELFLZECERHLZ
FOERE A T o

Number of
attendance
Members RE IR &
. _____________________________________________________________________________________
Mr. Zhong Jian Bkt 1/1
Mr. Du Hongwei HRELE 1/1
Mr. Pan Lihui IR E N/A 73 A

(appointed on 9 July 2021)
Mr. See Tak Wah
(resigned on 9 July 2021)

MefEE L

(R-BE-_—FtANLBEZE)

l

(RZEBZ—FtANBRE)

RECBIBRIERBER AT /2021 F R



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EREQHE ()

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Du Hongwei, Mr. Zhong
Jian and Mr. Pan Lihui with Mr. Du Hongwei as the chairman of
the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; to assess the
independence of INEDs; and to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the chairman and
the chief executive officer.

The Nomination Committee had reviewed the diversity of the
Board during the year ended 31 December 2021 and will review
the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure that the
policy will be implemented effectively.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year ended 31
December 2021 to review the structure, size and composition
of the Board, assess the independence of INEDs, review the
Board Diversity Policy and nominate Directors. The record of
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has resolved on 28 December 2018 to adopt the
following Nomination Policy:

1. The Nominee Committee will:

1.1 review and monitor the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity of perspectives) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

1.2 identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;

1.3 assess the INEDs and where the Board proposes a
resolution to elect an individual as an INED at the
general meeting, it should set out in the circular to
shareholders (“Shareholders”, and each a
“Shareholder”) and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general
meeting:

1.3.1 the process used for identifying the individual
and why the Board believes the individual
should be elected and the reasons why it
considers the individual to be independent;

1.3.2 if the proposed INED will be holding their
seventh (or more) listed company directorship,
why the Board believes the individual would
still be able to devote sufficient time to the
Board;

1.3.3 the perspectives, skills and experience that the
individual can bring to the Board; and

1.3.4 how the individual contributes to diversity of
the Board.
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1.4

1.5

1.6

2.1

EalE (1|)

TRE

review the diversity of Board members periodically
which can be achieved through consideration of a
number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, or
professional experience;

make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer; and

assist the Board in the development and review of
the Board's diversity policy and directors’ nomination
policy, as appropriate; and review the measurable
objectives for the implementation of the Board's
diversity policy and monitor progress towards the
achievement of such.

The Company's process for appointing a Director

Approach and procedures for the Board to appoint a
Director

211 Nomination Committee considers the
candidates based on merit having regard
to the skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity of perspectives and then makes
recommendations to the Board as appropriate;

2.1.2 Executive Directors’ appointment will be made
through a service contract with a term of
service continues unless and until terminated
by either party by giving to the other three
months’ period notice in writing;

2.1.3 Non-executive Directors’ (“NEDs"”, and each a
“NED") appointment will be made through a
formal letter of appointment with a term of
twelve-month period which automatically
renews for successive twelve months periods
unless terminated by either party in writing
prior to the expiry of the term;

1.4

1.5

1.6

ZAN/N

2.1
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Retiring NEDs, including those who have
served as NEDs for a period of 9 consecutive
years, are eligible for nomination by the Board
to stand for re-election at a general meeting.
For the avoidance of doubt, (a) the 9-year period
for determining the eligibility of an NED for
nomination by the Board to stand for election at
a general meeting would count from his/her
date of first appointment as an NED until the
date of the forthcoming annual general meeting
when his/her current term of service will expire
at the end of that meeting; and (b) an NED who
has been serving on the Board for a period of 9
consecutive years or more may continue to
hold office until expiry of his/her current term;

Serving more than 9 years could be relevant to
the determination of a NED's independence. If
an INED serves more than 9 years, his further
appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by Shareholders of
the Company. In addition to the receipt of their
confirmation of independence, the papers to
Shareholders accompanying that resolution
should include the reasons why the Board
believes he is still independent and should be
re- elected;

Newly appointed Directors approved by the
Board are subject to election by Shareholders
at the first general meeting following the
appointment (in case of filling a casual vacancy)
or until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company (in case of an
additional to the Board), but he shall not be
taken into account in determining the Directors
or the number of Directors who are to retire by
rotation in case he retires at an annual general
meeting; and
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Existing Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at the annual general meeting at least
once every three years but are eligible for re-
election. This applies to one-third of existing
Directors according to the Articles of
Association. The Directors to retire by rotation
shall include any Director who wishes to retire
and not to offer himself for re-election.

2.2 Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

221

222

223

If a Shareholder of the Company wishes to
propose a person other than a retiring director
for election as a director of the Company at a
general meeting, the Shareholder (other than
the person to be proposed) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the general meeting shall
send a written notice, duly signed by the
Shareholder, of his/her intention to propose
such person for election and also a notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his/her
willingness to be elected;

These notices should be lodged at the
Company’'s head office in Hong Kong or the
Company’'s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, during a period
commencing no earlier than the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and ending no later
than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting provided that such period shall
be at least seven days; and

Shareholders may put forward their enquiries
about the Company to the Board through the
Company Secretary at 20/F., No. 9 Des Voeux
Road West, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.
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2.3 Approach and procedures for Shareholders’ approval
to appoint a Director at the general meeting

2.3.1 Proposed Director appointment is considered
as an individual resolution at the general
meeting;

2.3.2 Shareholders will approve the election or re-

election of Directors by Ordinary Resolution at

the Company's general meeting; and

2.3.3 Any Director so appointed shall hold office only

until the next following general meeting of the

Company (in the case of filling a causal vacancy)

or until the next following annual general

meeting of the Company (in the case of an
addition to the Board), and shall then be eligible
for re-election at the meeting, but he shall not
be taken into account in determining the

Directors or the number of Directors who are to

retire by rotation in case he retires at an annual

general meeting.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieve a sustainable and
balanced development of the Company and to enhance the
quality of performance of the Company. The Policy aims at
achieving diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives and Selection

In designing the Board's composition, a number of perspectives
which include race, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, industry experience, technical and professional
experience, knowledge, skills, length of service, personal
integrity and time commitments of the proposed candidates
will be taken into consideration. The Company will also take
into account factors relating to its own business model and
specific needs from time to time. The ultimate decision is
based on merit and contribution that the candidates will bring to
the Board. Candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
board.
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The Board will take opportunity to increase the proportion of
female members over time when selecting and making
recommendation on suitable candidates for Board
appointments. The Board would ensure that appropriate balance
of gender diversity is achieved with reference to stakeholders’
expectation and international and local recommended best
practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing the Board to gender
parity. The Board also aspires to having an appropriate
proportion of Directors who have direct experience in the
Group's core markets, with different ethnic backgrounds, and
reflecting the Group's strategy.

Implementation and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy and report to the Board annually.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company’s corporate governance duties are carried out by
the Board pursuant to the following terms of reference adopted
by the Board:

(a) to develop and review the Company's policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’'s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Company's
employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group and ensures
that the consolidated financial statements have adopted the
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
complied with the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance and the
Listing Rules.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report section of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems are in place for the Group.

The Group's system of risk management and internal control
includes a defined management structure with limits of
authority, and is designed to safeguard the Group’s assets
against unauthorised use or misappropriation, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounts, and ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. The systems are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve the Group’s business objectives.

The Group has a risk management process in place to identify,
evaluate and manage significant risks and to resolve material
internal control defects, if any. Risks are compiled, rated and
mitigation plans are proposed and documented in a risk
template by the responsible officer of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The risk assessment is reviewed and evaluated by
the management of the Company. The identified risks are
managed by the Group through (i) implementing controls that
eliminate the risk entirely, (ii) implementing mitigation plans to
reduce the severity of the risk to an acceptable level, or (iii)
taking no action if the risk is acceptable for the Group (as the
case may be). The risk assessments are presented to the Audit
Committee and the Board for their review semi-annually.
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The Group has maintained internal control policies to provide
sufficient guidelines for the management staff and employees
of the Company to work efficiently under a standardised work
procedure. The internal control policies cover various operating
processes from risk assessment, financial reporting, cost
management, pricing for projects, staff recruitment and training
to IT system control. The internal control system is generally
overseen by the executive Directors and senior management
and is reviewed at least once a year.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
engaged an independent external consulting firm as the Group’s
internal control consultant to review the effectiveness of the
Group’s selected internal control measures. Review of the
Group’s internal controls covering major financial, operational
and compliance controls, as well as risk management functions
of different systems has been done on a systematic rotational
basis based on the risk assessments of the operations and
controls. No major issue but areas for improvement have been
identified. The Board and the Audit Committee considered that
the key areas of the Group’'s internal control systems are
reasonably implemented.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication
with Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group which
includes interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars, is disseminated to Shareholders in a timely manner
through the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company,
respectively.

The Company also acknowledges that general meetings are
valuable forums for the Board to communicate directly with the
Shareholders and members of the Board and committees are
encouraged to attend and answer questions at the general
meetings.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting and Putting Forward
Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association,
extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board
or the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Directors for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit
the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

If a shareholder of the Company wishes to propose a person
other than a retiring director for election as a director of the
Company at a general meeting, the shareholder (other than the
person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting shall send a written notice, duly signed by the
shareholder, of his/her intention to propose such person for
election and also a notice signed by the person to be proposed
of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices should be
lodged at the Company's head office in Hong Kong or the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited, during a period commencing no earlier than the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and ending no later than seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting provided that such
period shall be at least seven days.
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Shareholders may put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board through the Company Secretary at 20/F,
No. 9 Des Voeux Road West, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

The Shareholders’ Communication Policy adopted by the
Company is publicly available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

Dividend Policy

The Board has suggested to adopt a dividend policy to provide
the Shareholders with regular dividends (the “Dividend
Policy”). The Company considers stable and sustainable
returns to Shareholders to be our goal and endeavours to
maintain a progressive dividend policy. In deciding whether to
propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board takes into account the Group’s earnings performance,
financial position, investment requirements and future
prospects. There can be no assurance that a dividend will be
proposed or declared in any given year. If a dividend is proposed
or declared, there can be no assurance that the dividend
amount will be as contemplated above.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There had been no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2021. A copy
of the Company’s latest constitutional documents is publicly
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.
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The biographical details of Directors up to the date of this
annual report, are set out below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Li Gang (“Mr. Li"), Chairman

Mr. Li, aged 59, joined the Company as an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Board on 29 June 2020. Mr. Li
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in engineering from the University
of Nanking (FAREZEKE) in 1984. Mr. Li has accumulated
many years of working and corporate management experience
in the fields of trading and financial technology. He founded
Shenzhen Youbo Network Technology Co., Ltd. (#YIMEIB AR
B BMR A 7)) and served as the general manager. He has also
worked as the product director in Shanghai Mingchuang
Software Technology Co., Ltd. (_E/&88IEUH1TBR A 7)), as
the trust manager in Chongging International Trust Co., Ltd. (&
BEHEER{EFEAMR A F]) and the trust manager in Zhongrong
International Trust Co., Ltd. (FEMEFEBRAR]). Mr. Liis
currently the vice chairman of the board of directors of
Wonderland International Financial Holdings Limited (ZE{EEEE
S RIERR B R A A]). Mr. Li is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company.
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Mr. Pan Lihui (“Mr. Pan”)

Mr. Pan, aged 54, joined the Company as an Executive Director
on 29 June 2020. He has been appointed as a member of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee since 9 July 2021. Mr. Pan obtained a bachelor
degree in International Economics from Beijing University of
International Relations (1t REIEREAZZFr) in the PRC in 1989.
He has over 27 years of experience in trading and corporate
management of nonferrous metals industry. Mr. Pan worked in
Mind Honour Limited ((Z AR Q7)) from 1994 to 1998 as a
manager. Mr. Pan founded Pentart Industrial Limited (B8 & %
AR F]) in 1998 and Able Plus International Limited (& #A BIES
(1ZRR)BPR2AF]) in 2001 and has since been a director and
general manager of these two companies. Mr. Pan currently
serves as an Independent Non-executive Director of Beijing
Sports and Entertainment Industry Group Limited (stock code:
1803), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Pan is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company.
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Mr. Jiang Senlin (“Mr. Jiang”)

Mr. Jiang, aged 50, has been appointed as Executive Director
of the Company since 28 June 2019.

Mr. Jiang has been the vice-president and chief financial officer
in Wonderland International Financial Holdings Limited (ZE{&H
R R AR A F)) since January 2018 and the independent
non-executive director of China Ruifeng Renewable Energy
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 527) since 31 January 2019. He
has also been appointed as a non-executive director of Suoxinda
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3680) since March 2022. Mr.
Jiang worked in BeijingRenge Technology Corp. Ltd (1t 1=k
BB BEBR A7) (NEEQ Code: 837824, voluntarily delisted in
December 2018) as vice general manager and chief financial
officer from September 2015 to December 2017. He also
worked as chief financial officer (Asia) in Morningstar, Inc.
(NASDAQ: MORN) from August 2009 to September 2015.

Mr. Jiang qualified as an accountant in the People’'s Public of
China in May 1998 and as an intermediate financial officer
conferred by the Ministry of Personnel People's Republic of
China in November 1997. Mr. Jiang completed his research
program in Art and Culture* (3XZ£2) at Sichuan University in
July 2000 and obtained his bachelor degree in Accountancy at
the Central Institute of Finance (R B B & B E22FT) (now known
as the Central University of Finance and Economics) in June
19588,

*  Literal translation of the Chinese Name
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Zhong Jian (“Mr. Zhong*“)

Mr. Zhong Jian, aged 52, has been appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company since 22 October 2019.

Mr. Zhong has obtained a bachelor’s degree in Finance from
The Central University of Finance and Economics, a master's
degree in International Finance from Renmin University of China
and a master’'s degree in Executive Master of Business
Administration from Chinese Europe International Business
School.

Mr. Zhong is currently the fund manager of Shanghai Mingyu
Asset Management Co., Ltd. He was the vice president and
chief financial officer of Kasen International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 496) from August 2007 to June 2014 and
September 2007 to June 2014, respectively.
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Mr. Du Hongwei (“Mr. Du”)

Mr. Du, aged 54, has been appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director, member of the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee of the
Company on 29 June 2020. On 15 March 2021, Mr. Du has
been re-designated from the position of a member of the
Nomination Committee to the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Company.

Mr. Du holds a Master's Degree in Economics from Fudan
University (2B K&). As advised by Mr. Du, Mr. Du was a
director of Sichuan Dikang Sci & Tech Pharmaceutical Industry
Co., Ltd. (O)IEREHREERMNDBER AR (now known as
Sichuan Languang Development Co., Ltd. (FO)I|E 3 ERN A
R~ 7])), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 600466.SH) from November 2007 to October
2008. He served as the general manager of Tianjin Yufeng
Equity Investment Co., Ltd. (RKEHEREREFRAR]) from
September 2009 to May 2012; served as the vice president,
chief financial officer and joint company secretary of Sunshine
100 China Holdings Ltd (stock code: 2608), the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from
December 2013 to July 2016, January 2014 to March 2016 and
June 2014 to March 2016, respectively; served as an
independent non-executive director of the Company from June
2018 to October 2019; also served as an independent non-
executive director of Legend Strategy International Holdings
Group Company Limited (Stock Code: 1355), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
since 15 August 2018.
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Mr. Liu Qin (“Mr. Liu”)

Mr. Liu Qin, aged 52, has been appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Audit Committee
since 9 July 2021.

Mr. Liu graduated from Central University of Finance and
Economics with a bachelor’'s degree in Western Accounting
and Economics in 1993. He has over 28 years of experience in
corporate finance, taxation and internal control management in
large-scale group companies. Mr. Liu is currently serving as the
PRC tax director in Ericsson (stock code: ERIC, a company
whose shares are listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market). He has
served as the PRC tax director in Otis (stock code: OTIS, a
company whose shares are listed on the NASDAQ Stock
Market). He was a tax manager at KPMG, being responsible for
providing auditing, tax planning, financial management and
other compliance advice to companies in different industries.
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Report of the Directors
EFERYE

The Directors hereby present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 22
to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of Group's activities as required
by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including a fair
review of the business, a discussion of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely future
developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” sections of this annual report. These sections form
part of this report of the Directors.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to declare a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 65
to 66.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movement in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option schemes as set out in “Share Option
Schemes” section in this report, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Group, or existed during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movement in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 69 and Note 34(b) to
the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had no reserves
available for distribution.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, sales to the Group's
five largest customers accounted for approximately 91.1% of
the Group’s total revenue and sales to the largest customer
included therein accounted for approximately 51.4%.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
67.0% of the Group's total purchases and purchases from the
largest supplier included therein accounted for approximately
28.0%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Li Gang

Mr. Pan Lihui

Mr. Jiang Senlin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhong Jian
Mr. Du Hongwei
Mr. Liu Qin

(appointed on 9 July 2021)
Mr. See Tak Wah (resigned on 9 July 2021)
Mr. Li Jinyuan (resigned on 15 March 2021)

In accordance with Article 108(A) of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Pan Lihui and Mr. Zhong Jian shall retire from his office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
“AGM") and being eligible, with offer himself for re-election at
the AGM.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Liu Qin shall retire from their office at the AGM, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Each of Mr. Pan Lihui, Mr. Zhong Jian and Mr. Liu Qin have
indicated their willingness to offer themselves for re-election at
the AGM.

Mr. Li Jinyuan and Mr. See Tak \Wah resigned as Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company on 15 March 2021 and
9 July 2021 respectively.

The Company received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered all of the Independent Non-executive
Directors as independent.
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DIRECTORS PROFILE

Biographical details of Directors of the Company are set out on
pages 37 to 42 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the AGM
has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Other than as disclosed in Note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements and contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, its subsidiaries or its parent companies was a party
and in which a director of the Company and the Director’s core
connected persons had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The purpose of the 2011 Share Option Scheme (hereinafter
defined) is to enable the Group to recognise the contribution of
the participants to the Group and to motivate the participants to
continuously work to the benefit of the Group by offering the
participants an opportunity to have personal interest in the
share capital of the Company.

Share option scheme adopted by the Company on 12
May 2011 (“2011 Share Option Scheme”)

The Company adopted the 2011 Share Option Scheme which
was approved by shareholders in the Company’s annual general
meeting held on 12 May 2011. Details of movement of the
options granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme for the
year ended 31 December 2021 were as follows:

Movement in the 2011 Share Option Scheme
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Exercise As at Lapsed As at
Name or category price 1 January during 31 December
of participants Date of grant Exercise period per share 2021 the year 2021
RZB=-F RER  R=B=- E
SEEMERER Rt A Cagid BRITEE —A-H %M t=A=t-
(HKS)
(BTT)
. ____________________________________ e
Others
Httr
In aggregate 23/06/2011 23/06/2012 to 22/06/2021 6.132 3,217,399 (3,217,399) =
a5t 23/06/2012 % 22/06/2021
31/12/2012 31/12/2013 to 30/12/2022 2.298 53,209 - 53,209
31/12/2013 £30/12/2022
Total: 3,270,608 (3,217,399) 53,209
@it
Notes: e -
(1) 50% of the share options are exercisable in a period commencing one (1) year (1) 50% AR B H B BN — (1) F 8 BRERE

from the date of grant and expiring on the day falling one day preceding the
tenth anniversary from the date of grant. The balance of 50% of the share
options are exercisable in a period commencing two (2) years from the date of
grant and expiring on the day falling one day preceding the tenth anniversary
from the date of grant.

(2) As at 31 December 2021, the Company had 53,209 (2020: 3,270,608) share
options outstanding under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 0.0098% (2020: 0.60%) of the Company’s shares in issue on
that date.

(3) No share options under the 2011 Share Option Scheme were granted,
exercised or cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company, if any, in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions of Directors in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company

EERBRTHRAERR®D - HER
REFZERZRER

RIEBE-_—F+-_A=+—H AQAESE
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N BRI E &5 55 352 kA2 AN A R & e sk AR
B AR RIS LT AZE R ETT
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AR Em REAINT ¢
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Number of Approximate
Capacity and Number of underlying % of
Name of director nature of interest shares held  shares held Total shareholding
FristaE BAER
BEEpR BORERMEE PRt &8 LR ! et B
Mr. Li Gang (“Mr. Li") Interest of controlled 112,789,766 - 112,789,766 20.79%
corporation (note 1)
(Btat1)
FHIEE((ZERE]) Sk VNI £
Mr. Pan Lihui Beneficial owner 33,112,281 - 33,112,281 6.10%
(“Mr. Pan") (note 2)
(Btet2)
BB EREEA
(MEEED
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note:

1. Wonderland International Investment Holdings Limited is owned by Hua Zhi
Investment Limited as to 58.44%, which is owned by Mr. Li as to 53.77%. Mr.
Li was deemed to be interested in the 112,789,766 shares of the Company
held by Wonderland International Investment Holdings Limited by reason of
interests of controlled corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
Mr. Li is a substantial shareholder of the Company and his shareholding in the
Company is also set out in the section headed “Interests and Short Positions
of Substantial Shareholders Disclosable under the SFO".

2. Mr. Pan is a substantial shareholder of the Company and his shareholding in
the Company is also set out in the section headed “Interests and Short
Positions of Substantial Shareholders Disclosable under the SFO".

3. As at 31 December 2021, the number of issued shares of the Company was
542,392,207.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company, or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option
Schemes” and “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors or their respective spouses
or minor children had any rights to subscribe for the securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such rights during the
year.

Ffaz:

1. EEEERIEE A R A A B Hua Zhi Investment
Limited % %5 58.44% ## % * M Hua Zhi Investment
Limited FAZF St 4 #E A 53.77% o - AR ZIEFIQ
AR (ERABHFRBEROEXVE) - T4
WEARNEREBEREERBERARMAEB ZAR
A1112,789,766 IR F B R - FRERAAT
ZEERE - HRARARZRESH N [BIRE % R
BERAEERRAETRBENERREE] — -

2. BRERARBZERRR  ERAR B ZIHEH
RIBREFSRBEGITERRATRENES
MER| -

3. REZBZ—F+=ZA=+—8 " AQRDEITRHG
B A542,392,207 % -

BREXHEEEIN RZZE=Z—F+=A
=t+—HB BMEARRAEERESTTHRAE
RAR RS EEMAAEEZE(EEREHFR
HIEIEBIZE XV ER) 2 B ~ MR R EH
F o BEREAEREES KBS KM 352
T LARRER » SARIBAZ ST R Z MR e A X0
SARNR MBIz RER o

EXZREROIES 2ER

fr EX [T 8 R EER&E®ITR
ABRED - HEARD REF 2 EERE
RISHABEEZFTEIN RERNTMARK
B - ANAE S E AL A B R] S A
R BEEEAEBEAR RS EM
EAERZ BN ESFMERNE - MEE
ERREZRBRARKFFLARRBELAR
AlE S - AR FRTTRIMAZETER -

RACBIBRIERBR AT /2021 F3R

49



50

Report of the Directors (Continued)

EFEWE (])

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2021, the following interests of more than
5% of the total number of issued shares of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company

BERSRPERAETERRETH
BENESERER

R-Z-—F+-_A=+—8  KQaRE
BAENPEEFIFE IR ERRRAFTE
ZEREEMEB UL TEARRT B BTG
HBEREY LA 2 RS
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Number of  Approximate %
Name of shareholder Capacity and nature of interest shares held  of shareholding
R BN RERNE FisRaEE BASKRE D
Mr. Li Interest of controlled corporation 112,789,766 20.79%
FEE 8 NG -y (note 1)
(Fizt1)
Wonderland International Investment Beneficial owner 112,789,766 20.79%
Holdings Limited (note 1)
ERERREERBER AT ExfEAA (Kiat1)
Mr. Pan Beneficial owner 33,112,281 6.10%
Vi Pikes E=fEAA
Executive Success Limited Beneficial owner 28,142,920 5.19%
Executive Success Limited EREEA
note: HtaE:
1. Wonderland International Investment Holdings Limited is owned by Hua Zhi 1. ZRBEIFR &R AR 2 A B Hua Zhi Investment
Investment Limited as to 58.44%, which is owned by Mr. Li as to 53.77%. Mr. Limited # 5 68.44% # 25 - 1 Hua Zhi Investment
Li was deemed to be interested in the 112,789,766 shares of the Company Limited F2= 54 #76 63.77% #eat - (IR RIZHIA
held by Wonderland International Investment Holdings Limited by reason of Az (TR R EBSRERGISEXVER) - =R4E
interests of controlled corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. WRBRERBEREAZRERARAEE 2 AR
71112,789,766 AR AR 17 #E A #E 25 o
o As at 31 December 2021, the number of issued shares of the Company was 2. RZFB-_—F+-A=+—R  X2FAZETEN

542,392,207.

B A542,392,207 % -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the
Company had not been notified of any other relevant interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.

GROUP’S EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group adopted the following philosophies in determining
its emolument policy:

o the Group adopts a performance driven policy so that each
individual is motivated to perform to the best he/she can;

o individual competence, contribution and responsibility are
taken into account when considering the remuneration
level for each employee;

o the Company offers provident fund, medical insurance and
leave benefits to provide basic coverage to staff for
retirement, sickness, rest and relaxation reasons,
respectively;

o share option grants are made from time to time to better
link the corporate performance as reflected in the share
price performance and the contributions made by the staff
in the intermediate to longer time frame; and

o the economic factors and the affordability of the Group are
taken into account in coming up with the overall
remuneration budget for the Group.

The Group has also adopted a discretionary bonus scheme.
Factors, such as overall financial performance, the affordability
of the Company and individual performance, have been taken
into account before determining the entitlement of each
qualified employee.

The determination of Directors’ remuneration has taken into
consideration of their respective responsibilities and
contributions to the Company and with reference to market
terms.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every director or other
officer of the Company for the time being acting in relation to
any affairs of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which he/she shall or may incur or sustain in or about
the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto provided that the indemnity shall not extend to
any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty of the above
persons. The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and other
officers of the Company during the year.

MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are disclosed in Note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of the related party
transactions as disclosed constituted disclosable non-exempted
connected transaction or non-exempted continuing connected
transaction under the Listing Rules and the Company had
complied with the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as otherwise disclosed, none of the Directors of the
Company had any interest in any business which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the listed securities of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on the information publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, at least 256% of the issued share capital of the
Company was held by the public.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company had complied with all the applicable code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2021.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 148.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been reviewed by
the Audit Committee and have been duly approved by the board
of directors of the Company under the recommendation of the
Audit Committee.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 were audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA
CPA Limited (“"ZHONGHUI ANDA"). ZHONGHUI ANDA will
retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of ZHONGHUI ANDA as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Li Gang
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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To the member of Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 65 to 147, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B BB E ()

BASIS OF QUALIFIED OPINIONS

Trade receivables, loan receivables, interest
receivables, prepayments, consideration
receivables and impairment loss of trade
receivables, impairment loss of prepayment for
purchase of building materials and interest income
from loan receivables

We have been unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the recoverability of
loan receivables of approximately HK$183,540,000,
interest receivables of approximately HK$40,922,000
and consideration receivables of approximately
HK$143,404,000 as at 31 December 2021; as well as
trade receivables of approximately HK$19,365,000, loan
receivables of approximately HK$178,200,000, interest
receivables of approximately HK$39,731,000,
prepayments for purchase of building materials of
approximately HK$311,862,000 and consideration
receivables of approximately HK$139,232,000 as at 31
December 2020. In addition, we have been unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy
ourselves as to the appropriate timing for recognition of (i)
the impairment loss of trade receivables of approximately
HK$19,665,000 and (ii) impairment loss of prepayment for
purchase of building materials of approximately
HK$316,614,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021;
and interest income from loan receivables of
approximately HK$15,258,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020.

There are no other satisfactory audit procedures that we
could adopt to determine whether the above amounts are
fairly stated in the consolidated financial statements.
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In respect of the loan receivables, interest receivables and
consideration receivables, the management is still in the
progress of taking various actions, including but not
limited to legal actions, against the respective debtors and
borrowers. No result from actions is available up to the
date of this report for justifying the extent of the
recoverabilities of loan receivables, interest receivables
and consideration receivables. In the absence of the
information in relation to the financial status of the debtors
and borrowers on assessing the respective abilities for
settlement, the management considered that there is
uncertainty on recovering the loan receivables, interest
receivables and consideration receivables.

In respect of the trade receivables and prepayments for
purchase of building materials, the management, after
seeking legal advice in respect of the extent of its
respective recoverabilities, provided for an impairment
loss of trade receivables of approximately HK$19,665,000
and impairment loss of prepayment for purchase of
building materials of approximately HK$316,614,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2021. The management
could not provide to us sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to justify whether the impairment loss of trade
receivables and impairment loss of prepayment for
purchase of building materials should be made in the
current year or in the prior years.

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Limited accounting books and records of certain
subsidiaries of the Group

In addition to the qualified items stated above, due to the
insufficiency of supporting documentation and
explanations for accounting books and records in respect
of certain subsidiaries of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 and 31 December 2020, we were unable
to carry out audit procedures to satisfy ourselves as to
whether the following income and expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, and
the assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020, and the segment information and other
related disclosure notes in relation to certain subsidiaries
of the Group, as included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, have been accurately recorded
and properly accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements:

(a) Income and expenses:

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BB (1)

BEXEEETHEARANSTRER
ACEAR
BfJ:LE’M%“”:‘EIEEQI\'EEEA =

ETHBRARAEBEZ-_Z=_—F
+ H +—BAEk=ZZT=FF+=A4
=t+—BLEFEMNESFEREE REEN
FREXHERBESNE  LASEMEE
ETEHER  ERMEMAUTER
—E - F+ZA=+—RAKRZZ=
ZFE+-_A=Z+—BIFENKAR
XM —_ZE-_—%F+-A=+—8H
F—E-EF+_A=+—HMEE
rEBER f%@%?%%@ﬁ%ﬁ

MoMERE BERERAMBE®REK
HMBERENERE E,ﬁv?/:.\ﬁﬁ%i&

REMCHENZ DA

(a) WBARFX :

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=1T—-HLEE

Revenue Wz

Cost of sales SHE KA

Other gains, net H A S

Interest income ISR ON

Impairment losses of trade BN E SRR KB E R
receivables and prepayment for MR FES R IE
purchase of building materials HRVE 1R

Administrative and operating T M E &R
expenses

Finance costs BB A

Income tax expense SRR

(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE),HF

2021 2020
—EBC-fF —E_FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT SR
5,L151

(5,899)
2

15,258*
(1,105)
(7)
(330,908) 14,200

* Included in qualified item (1) above

* BRtALRBERIER (1)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B BEH RS (8)

(b) Assets and liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment
Bank and cash balances
Trade and other payables
Income tax payables

SR1T MR & 45

e PISHE

W% -~ BEMRE

BB SRS &Eﬁfﬁ

(c) Commitments and contingent liabilities:

No sufficient evidence has been provided to satisfy
ourselves as to the existence and completeness of
the disclosures of commitments and contingent
liabilities in relation to certain subsidiaries of the
Group and their operations as at 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2020.

(d) Related party transaction and disclosures:

No sufficient evidence has been provided to satisfy
ourselves as to the existence, accuracy and
completeness of the disclosures of the related party
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2020 and balances as at 31
December 2021 and 31 December 2020 in relation
to certain subsidiaries of the Group and their
operations as required by Hong Kong Accounting
Standard 24 (Revised) “Related Party Disclosures”.

(b) BERERE:
As at 31 December
BR+=—HA=+—8
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAET
33
29
9,279
2,487
(c) RIERBAERE
REERH TN FEBRFEHMER
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B BB E ()

Any adjustments to the figures as described above points 1 to
2 might have a consequential effect on the Group’s financial
performance and cash flows for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 and the financial positions of the Group as at 31
December 2021 and 2020, and the related disclosures thereof
in the consolidated financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements which mentions that the Group incurred a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$357,773,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021. In
addition, as at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank and cash
balances of approximately HK$8,898,000 is insufficient to cover
the current liabilities of approximately HK$117,375,000. These
conditions indicate a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matters described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion section and the Material Uncertainty
Related to Going Concern section, we have determined the
matter described below to be the key audit matter to be
communicated in our report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B BEH RS (8)

Investment properties
Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group measured its investment properties at fair value with
the changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss. This fair value measurement is significant to our audit
because the balance of investment properties of approximately
HK$172,528,000 as at 31 December 2021 and the fair value
loss of approximately HK$13,870,000 for the year then ended
are material to the consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the Group's fair value measurement involves
application of judgement and is based on assumptions and
estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the competence, independence and integrity of
the external valuer engaged by client;

— Obtaining the external valuation report and meeting with
the external valuer to discuss and challenge the valuation
process, methodologies used and market evidence to
support significant judgements and assumptions applied
in the valuation model;

—  Checking key assumptions and input data in the valuation
model to supporting evidence;

— Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model,
and

— Assessing the disclosure of the fair value measurement in
the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s fair value measurement of the
investment properties is supported by the available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information in the
Company's annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B BB E ()

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. As described in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion section above, we were unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate evidence about the trade receivables, loan
receivables, interest receivables, prepayments, consideration
receivables and interest income from loan receivables, limited
accounting books and records of certain subsidiaries of the
Group and related party transactions and disclosures.
Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not the
other information is materially misstated with respect to these
matters.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B BEH RS (8)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's
website at:

http:/Mwvw.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/standards/auditing-
assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Sze Lin Tang

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P03614

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

FelRaR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE T - —F+ _H=1—HIFFE
Notes
KtaE

Revenue WA 10
Cost of sales SHE KA
Gross profit EF
Other gains, net H R 11
Interest income A BUA 12
Impairment loss of intangible assets ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ%?é
Impairment losses of FEWRIE R (B BB

receivables, net
Fair value change on KREMEALBEES

investment properties 21
Selling and distribution expenses  $4& R 955
Administrative and TR REERX

operating expenses
Loss from operations REEE
Finance costs BB KA 13
Loss before tax BRFiATEE 14
Income tax expense Frfefif 15
Loss for the year attributable to Z&Q TG AEEFEEEE

the owners of the Company
Loss per share BREER

(expressed in HK cent) (LABALZS)
Basic and diluted ERREE 17
The above consolidated statement of profit or loss should be  _E#li4R& 3183

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
FEx

321,844
(305,926)

15,918
11,002

7
(450)
(340,323)

(13,870)
(7,560)

(14,912)

(350,188)
(6,667)

(356,855)

(918)

(357,773)

(65.96)

2020
—BFF
HK$'000
THET

(3,982)
(21,794)

(25,776)

(25,776)

(5.40)

&7 FE SRR P Y 5 — OFBORE -
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Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
FeEEtZEka®

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_—F—-—F+1+_-_A=+—HIFFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FET

Loss for the year FEEE (357,773) (25,776)

Other comprehensive income Hit 2w =

Items that may be reclassified B g nHE 8%
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIEA :

Exchange differences arising on MEBINEBEE ZERZRE

translation of foreign operations 37,032
Other comprehensive income FREEMPENE - HRTIE

for the year, net of tax 37,032
Total comprehensive (loss)/ RKATHEE AEMN

income for the year attributable FE2E (Ei8) WHEEALE

to the owners of the Company (348,594) 11,256
The above consolidated statement of other comprehensive — _Filt4r & H b & U0 ES 3K & ER RS B B 5 — 6F
income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying & °
notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

HaEMBERAR

At 31 December 2021 R-ZFE-—#+_-_H=+—H

Notes
KtaE

Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y R R 18
Investment properties KEMZE 21
Intangible assets BmEE
Rental deposits HeZke
Current assets REBEE
Loan receivables FEWE K 20
Trade receivables FEUWE 5 BRI 23
Deposits, prepayments and Be - BREREM

other receivables FEU IR 24
Bank and cash balances RITRIA S &8
Total assets BEEARE
Capital and reserves BRR#E
Attributable to the owners of AATEE AEML

the Company
Share capital &N 27
Reserves B
Total equity SRR

2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
FEx

538
172,528
330

173,396

183,540
3,179

186,299
8,898

381,916

555,312

27,120
193,998

221,118

2020
—E-THF
HK$'000
FET

546
181,170
780

56

182,552

178,200
22,150

492,297
4,027

696,674

879,226

27,120
542,592

569,712
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
FEMBRAE ()

At 31 December 2021 R-ZFE-—#+_-H=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
KtaF F&T FET

Non-current liabilities FREBAE
Other borrowings HiuE 26 216,324 210,030
Asset retirement obligation BERBEER 495 495
216,819 210,525

Current liabilities REERE

Trade and other payables ENBSEREEMENTE 25 83,313 95,994
Shareholders’ loan AR E 31(b) 10,184 =
Loan from a fellow subsidiary KERRMBARIZER 31(c) 20,234 272
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary &t [E KB A 7 28 317(d) 168 236
Income tax payable FES RS R 3,476 2,487
117,375 98,989
Total liabilities EEBE 334,194 309,514
Total equity and liabilities EEkEEHEEE 555,312 879,226

The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 147 have F652 147 B 2 G BBERKCEES2 R
been approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2022 and —=&F— —4&—= )E] —1— At ERE NYES

are signed on its behalf by: REEESHE
Approved by: KTY|ESHE -
Li Gang Jiang Senlin
=l EHRM
Director Director
EF EF
The above consolidated statement of financial position should — _F &t 47 & BF 75 A it 3% & E2 B8 B B 78 — G5 B
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B o

68 ENVIRO ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2021 ANNUAL REPORT



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SeEEnR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #BEZE-—FE=-—F+-HA=1—HIFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FARHEAELE
Share
Share Share Capital option  Translation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
B BREEE xRl BRERE ESRE RitER @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THL THL T THEL TEL TEL

At 1 January 2020 RZZ-TF-f—-H 22,620 1,092,712 19,980 55,584 (31,671) (620,952) 538,273
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - (25,776) (25,776)

Other comprehensive loss Hit2EFE
Exchange differences arising from &N EKEE 2
translation of foreign operations ~ [EXZH = - - - 37,032 - 37,032

Total comprehensive loss *EFREE - - - - 37,032 (25,776) 11,256

Transactions with owners in REFEAUEEAZER

their capacity as owners EARS
Placing of new shares (note 27())  EEEHIRG (HzE270)) 4,500 15,683 = = = = 20,183
Lapse of share options BIRERN - - - (18,381) - 18,381 -
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-ZF+_A=1-H 27,120 1,108,395 19,980 37,203 5,361 (628,347) 569,712
At 1 January 2021 R-E-—-%-A—-H 27,120 1,108,395 19,980 37,203 (628,347) 569,712
Comprehensive loss 2EFE
Loss for the year FEER (357,773) (357,773)

Other comprehensive income ~ Efi2 Flz
Exchange differences arising from A& BN ELEEZ
translation of foreign operations ~ EX %

Total comprehensive loss 2EFRLE 9,179 (357,773) (348,594

Transactions with owners in HEEAUNEEAZEH

their capacity as owners EIRS
Lapse of share options BREAR (37,113) 37,113
At 31 December 2021 R-E--%+-R=1-H 27,120 1,108,395 19,980 90 14,540 (949,007) 221,118

=

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should — _E %t 47 & #E 25 & Bh 3% I B2 BB B Bt 5 — 6F 50
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B

BEEEERERAT /2021 F5% 09



70

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

1‘T SHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_—F—-—F+1+_-_A=+—HIFFE
2021
—EB——fF
HK$’000
F&xT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXK
Loss before tax bREiAE R (356,855)
Adjustments for: FTFNIER L AE
Interest income FEWA (7)
Finance costs B & R AN 6,667
Depreciation of property, plant and WE  BMENMREITE
equipment 9
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREBENE =
Fair value change on investment BEMELREBEE
properties 13,870
Impairment of intangible assets BREERE 450
Impairment losses of receivables, net  FEURIERE 1B %58 340,323
Wavier of interest of other borrowings %At EH it B 27 2. (8,705)

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

HEWE - BER&EEBR

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
Change in trade receivables
Change in deposits, prepayments and

other receivables
Change in trade and other payables

LEESRFN 2 KE

RERE

FE W E 5 RR R

me  ANFEREDER
,hﬁ@@]

e B 2Rk R R B Al FE AN SR IR B

Cash used in operations REMAZRS
Income tax paid BERFTEE

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REXKFTABRSFE
ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Interest received BB

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

BAYE - BB MK

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/
(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

REFBFE (TR RLFHE
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2020
—E-FF
HK$'000
FHET
(25,776)

(15,259)
21,794

(14,533)
(3,083)

(517)
102

(18,031)

(18,031)

(32)

(31)



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

HREBenRER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #BEZE-—FE=-—F+-HA=1—HIFE

2021 2020
s —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE&T T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Interest paid BEfFIE (1,935) (743)
Proceeds from loan from RERRMBARIZERZ
a fellow subsidiary FT15 7008 29,744 272
Repayment of loan from EBERERRMBARZER
a fellow subsidiary (9,782) (5,083)
Proceeds from shareholders’ loan IR B RFT1S 5KIE 124,704 =
Repayment of shareholders’ loan BEREER (114,520) -
Repayment of amount due to BEENRRWE A FKIE
a fellow subsidiary (68) =
Repayment of advance from former B8 B R R WER 2 22 5k
shareholder (18,392) =
Repayment of lease liabilities BEERAEAE (3,285)
Lease interest paid BEREERNE (83)
Proceeds from placing of shares B &R BTS2 I8 20,592
Transaction costs for placing shares Bl &R 2 R BRI (409)
Advance from a fellow subsidiary B [/ Z M B A & U E 2 23k 236
Proceeds from shareholder’s loan IR B RFT1S 5/IE 7,740
NET CASH GENERATED FROM METEMERSFEE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 19,237
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERRSSENYMFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,175
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHNzRERRAESEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,087
EXCHANGE DIFFERENCE ONCASH H$RESZENZELEE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 765
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERZBASRESEMY -
AT END OF YEAR, REPRESENTED BRITRE S
BY BANK AND CASH BALANCES 4,027

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read — _Filt4r & IR & i = 7% /& B2 8 Bt B 3£ — 1 5
in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B o
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under the
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands on 3 July
2002. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands. The address of its principal
place of business is 20/F, No.9 Des Voeux Road West,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong. The Company's shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) engaged in sales
of materials business and properties investment in Hong
Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31
December 2021, Wonderland International Investment
Holdings Limited (the “Controlling Shareholder”), a
company incorporated in the Hong Kong, is the immediate
and ultimate holding company of the Company, and Mr. Li
Gang (“Mr. Li"), Executive Director and Chairman of the
Board, is the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), which is the
Company's functional and the Group's presentation
currency, unless otherwise stated.

BE_ T —F1+_A=1+—HItFEF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

—REH
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Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands - EF E& ¥ 2 2
Wi REE FIRIEEHEEIF 2048 -
ARARZBRNDEBTBHERIFAR
ANEI([BRAT]) ER LT -

ARBIREMBAR (8 AEHE])
MEBRBARNEBERTEARKMN
(THEDREHEMBERBRYE
K& -

ARREEFRE R-T-_—F1=
A=+—8 REBEMKILZ A A
ERERREZERAR LA ([ERR
RDRERRRER R ZEERAF
mEmEE(TERE]) (MITEFRE
FEIR) RARRZHBRIERTT

BRIERARA BRI EFSEMBEHR
RIDATHETLEZN  BLAARAE L
NERARBZ 25 -

ENVIRO ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2021 ANNUAL REPORT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MR EME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2.

GOING CONCERN BASIS

The Group incurred a loss attributable to the owners of
the Company of approximately HK$357.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021. In addition, as at 31
December 2021, the Group's bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$8.9 million is insufficient to cover the
current liabilities of approximately HK$117.4 million. These
conditions indicate a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. Therefore, the Group may be unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which
depends upon the financial support of the Controlling
Shareholder, at a level sufficient to finance the working
capital requirements of the Group. The Controlling
Shareholder has agreed to provide adequate funds for the
Group to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due within next twelve months from 31 December
2021. The directors of the Company are therefore of the
opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to the
consolidated financial statements to adjust the value of
the Group's assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for any further liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current
assets and liabilities, respectively. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
amended Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA") that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 January 2021. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards; Hong Kong Accounting Standards;
and Interpretations. The adoption of these new and
amended HKFRSs did not result in significant impact to
the Group's accounting policies, presentation of the
Group's consolidated financial statements and amounts
reported for the current year and prior years.

BT —F1+_HA=1+—HItFE

2.

BEKEEE
BT -_—F+-_A=1+—HI#F
B AEEEEARRRHEE ARMGLE
B#)357.8BEBIT o WM - AEER
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FEEN1174888T c 25 B RE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEHREME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

The Group has not applied the new and amended
standards, interpretations and accounting guidelines that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group has
already commenced an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position
to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would
have a material impact on its results of operations and
financial position. The Group does not intend to early
adopt these standards before their respective effective
dates.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of investment properties which are
carried at their fair values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise their judgements in the process of applying
the accounting policies. The areas involving critical
judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to these consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

e T —F1+_A=1+—HItFEF

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MR EME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

o —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties, to determine whether it has control. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary
plus any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and
any related accumulated translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Ft_A=1+—HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEHREME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

o —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the
Company. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

Business combination and goodwiill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. The
cost of acquisition is measured at the acquisition-date fair
value of the assets given, equity instruments issued,
liabilities incurred and contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in
the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. ldentifiable assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MR EME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess
of the Company’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to the
Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss. The fair value is added to the cost of acquisition to
calculate the goodwvill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest in the subsidiary were recognised in other
comprehensive income (for example, equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income), the
amount that was recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised on the same basis as would be
required if the previously held equity interest were
disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The method of
measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the same as
that of other assets as stated in the accounting policy
below. Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss and are not subsequently
reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M5 R aE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZT_-_—F+-_HA=1+—HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFTEK(E)
(Continued)
Foreign currency translation SMEE
(i) Functional and presentation currency (i) hWEREIEH

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
HK$. The functional currency of the Group's principal
operating entities is Renminbi. The directors consider
that choosing HK$ as the presentation currency best
suits the needs of the shareholders and investors.
(ii) Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

(ii)

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values
in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

& M58 R E (18)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZ T - —#+_-F=1+—HIFFZE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(ifi) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group's
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Group's presentation currency are translated into
the Group's presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in
translation reserve. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEHREME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

o —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method

to allocate the cost of the assets to their residual values

over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements 3 year or over the lease term,
whichever is shorter

Computer equipment 2-3 years
and software
Office equipment 5 years

The estimated residual values, useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed, at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MR EME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An investment
property is measured initially at its cost including all direct
costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated
at its fair value based on valuation by an external
independent valuer. Gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value of the investment property are recognised in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the property, and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Leases
The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities when the leased assets are
available for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets is
calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. The principal annual rate is as follows:

Office premises 33%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEHREME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

o —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities,
lease payments prepaid, initial direct costs and the
restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the lease payments discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease if that rate can be determined, or
otherwise the Group's incremental borrowing rate. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease
liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Short-
term leases are leases with an initial lease term of 12
months or less. Low-value assets are assets of value
below US$5,000.

The Group as lessor
Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease.

Club membership

Club membership with indefinite useful life is stated at
cost less any impairment losses. Impairment is reviewed
annually or when there is any indication that the club
membership has suffered an impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MR EME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control on
the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset
within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs except in the case of
investments at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of investments
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified as financial
assets at amortised cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEHREME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

o —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the
following conditions:

— the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the assets give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less loss allowance for
expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected
credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses
with the respective risks of a default occurring as the
weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures
the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount
equal to the expected credit losses that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of that
financial instrument (“lifetime expected credit losses”)
for trade receivables or if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a
financial instrument (other than trade receivables) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument
at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected
credit losses that represents the expected credit losses
that result from default events on that financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust
the loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to
the required amount is recognised in profit or loss as an
impairment gain or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MR EME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEHREME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer with reference to
the customary business practices and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised product or service exceeds one
year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a
significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the terms
of a contract and the laws that apply to that contract, a
performance obligation can be satisfied over time or at a
point in time. A performance obligation is satisfied over
time if:

— the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance;

— the Group’'s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

— the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue
is recognised by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the product or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MR EME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZ T - —#+_-F=1+—HIFFZE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Other revenue

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
at the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged in profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors and employees. The fair value of options
granted under the employee share option plan is
recognised as staff costs with a corresponding increase in
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEHREME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period,
the entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting
and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all of
the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

After vesting date, when the share options are forfeited
prior to the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in the “Share option reserve” will be transferred to the
“Accumulated losses” within the consolidated statement
of changes in equity

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MR EME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEHREME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to
be recovered through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model of the Group whose business objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred
tax for such investment properties are measured based on
the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MR EME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group's executive directors for the purpose of
allocating resources and assessing the performance of the
Group's various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of productions processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)~ has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) bhas significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

o —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If the
Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Company or to a parent of the
Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MR EME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets other than
receivables, to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of any
impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-
generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEHREME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

o —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MR EME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

5.

o —

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists solely of equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and reserves. Capital and reserve as at 31
December 2021 amounted to approximately HK$221.1
million (2020: approximately HK$569.7 million).

The Directors review the cost of capital and the associated
risk on a regular basis, and take appropriate actions to
adjust the Group capital structure in a timely manner.

In order to fund the Group's sales of materials business,
properties investment and current development,
significant amounts of capital in the form of borrowing or
equity, or a combination of both, are considered to be
necessary in the future. The Directors such funding for the
future development will be available as and when
required.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
equity. Net debt is calculated as the sum of other
borrowings, shareholders’ loan and loan from a fellow
subsidiary, less bank and cash balances. Total equity
represents total equity as shown on the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBI RMEE (])

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE _-—ZE - —#1+_-HA=+—HIFE

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5.

The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 was

EXERER (&)

_‘1' EIE’J,éf$E\1E\HS3‘:ZZD—I— :

2021
—E_—F
HK$'000
FET
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10,184
20,234

(8,988)

237,754
221,118

as follows:

Other borrowings HEfgE

Shareholders’ loan IRERE

Loan from a fellow subsidiary RERREWBARZER
Less: Bank and cash balances R RIT MRS R

Net debt FEE

Total equity e iEEE

Gearing ratio BEARBERLE

6. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 6.
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends upon the financial support of the
Controlling Shareholder at a level sufficient to finance
the working capital requirements of the Group.
Details are explained in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

& M58 R E (18)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZT_-_—F 1+ -_H=1+—HIFFE

6. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 6.
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors have reviewed the
Group's investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group's investment properties
are held under a business model of which the
objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred tax
for investment properties, the directors have
rebutted the presumption that investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered
through sale.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(a) Fair values of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent professional
valuer to assess the fair values of the investment
properties. In determining the fair values, the valuer
has utilised a method of valuation which involves
certain estimates. The directors have exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the method of
valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZ T - —F+_-F=+—HIFFZE

6. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 6. BEME R ETE(LS (8)

(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) e T EEENEZTERE (&)
(b) Impairment of financial assets of amortised costs (b) BEBHERATENTBEEZR

The loss allowances for financial assets at amortised
cost (including trade receivables, loan receivables
and deposits and other receivables) are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group's past
history, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables. For trade receivables which have
impaired, the Group assessed individually and
provided for credit losses allowance. If no reasonable
and supportable information is available without
undue cost for expected credit losses measurement,
the trade receivables were grouped by reference to
the credit risk characteristics and assessed
collectively for credit losses allowance. When
measuring expected credit loss, the Group considers
the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue trade
receivables, customers’ repayment history and
customers’ financial position, and adjusts by taking
into consideration current conditions and forward-
looking factors.

Changes in assumptions used could materially affect
the fair value of these balances and as a result affect
the Group’s financial condition and results of
operation.

Details of the key assumptions and inputs used for
trade receivables, loan receivables and deposits and
other receivables are disclosed in Notes 23, 20, and
24 respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MR EME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

6.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 6.

(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are recognised
when management considers it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can be
utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may
be different.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the respective Group’s entities. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEHREME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the bank and cash balances,
trade, loan and other receivables included in the
consolidated statement of financial position
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to the Group's financial assets.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers. The credit risk on bank and cash balances
is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

The directors are of the opinion that the credit risk on
loan receivables is limited as the management has
closely mentioned its recoverability and ensure
adequate provision for impairment is made when
necessary.

As at 31 December 2021, in respect of trade
receivables, the Group is exposed to concentration
of credit risk to the extent that approximately HK$2.9
million (2020: HK$8.2 million) of trade receivables is
attributable by a single customer. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the Group closely monitored
the outstanding balances on an ongoing basis to
ensure that follow-up actions are taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at each
balance sheet date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of financial assets
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period by comparing the risk of a default occurring as
at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following information is
used:

— internal credit rating;
— external credit rating (if available);

— actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant change
to the debtor’s ability to meet its obligations;

— actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;

— significant changes in the value of the collateral
or in the quality of guarantees or credit
enhancements; and

— significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the debtor,
including changes in the payment status of
debtor.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

o —

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a
debtor is more than 30 days past due in making a
contractual payment. A default on a financial asset is
when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 60 days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.
The Group normally categorises a loan or receivable
for write off when a debtor fails to make contractual
payments greater than 360 days past due. Where
loans or receivables have been written off, the
Group, if practicable and economical, continues to
engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover
the receivable due.

The Group uses two categories for non-trade
receivables which reflect their credit risk and how
the loss provision is determined for each of the
categories. In calculating the expected credit loss
rates, the Group considers historical loss rates for

Fr-_A=1+—HILFE

M REREE ()

(b)

FERR (&)

i BT A BB K15 SR8 H iR 48 30

EERRERERERD KIE
EFr - BHF T RER A HONK
FHIR60 A AERN R - BB =
BMEEERY -

TREENSERHEED (]
AR R S 0 B AN SR [ 5 AR 3K
FHED M -  AREBREERN
ERANENNE ﬁ%tL%o
B & 455 B & Sk UK
A - i B R E K E@
MH - AIASRE(EERATR
NEKBRANBRT) S#E
REE Bl TTITE E AR = 2 5
e IR o

AEERIIFESHENREES

BRR D RAMR - ARDBERBRE
#Mhﬁﬂﬁ AR BRI
EREBBENTTIE - R ETEH
EEBEXR  AEEEEES

each category and adjusts for forward-looking data. BRMELEEE - WEspAThE
MEIRIEH AR -

Category Definition Loss provision

5l E& BiREE

Performing Low risk of default and strong capacity to pay 12 month expected losses

L) EHRRRIE R REE 58 1218 A T BA & 18

Non-performing Significant increase in credit risk Lifetime expected losses

TR B oN b A HATE 1A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FeaMBHEME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE _—ZE - —#F1+_-HA=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 7. HBEBREE (&)

(c) Liquidity risk (c) RBEESRMRE
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and AREBRNBRATHEEE M
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it TEHRBESTE  UERELK
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and availability EEHRSHERNESHLE
of financial support from controlling shareholder to MR ESHE -
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long
term.
The table below analyses the Group's financial TEOMAERIZEZA 4R EA
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on R FIREAE AR A B IS R B
the remaining period at the date of the consolidated HERRERIBAENINERE
statement of financial position to the contractual B ZRABEESHEAE LA
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are IRIBETR

the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Less than
1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
—FHE MENL
—FR BREST B=FUT @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET THET THET
At 31 December 2021 RZBE--&
F=H ==
Trade and other payables ERBSER &
H it e 50E 80,133 80,133
Other borrowings and ‘r@ 0
interest payable FEf ﬂ,u 10,816 223,110 233,926
Shareholders' loan RERER 10,244 10,244
Loan from a fellow subsidiary RERZNBARIZER 20,534 20,534
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary JERTRIZHIE A EFIE 168 168
121,895 223,110 - 345,005
At 31 December 2020 R=2=%%
iie=H=1—{H
Trade and other payables ERESETR
H it 508 94,785 - - 94,785
Other borrowings HEthEF RS
and interest payable 6,589 10,502 220,532 237,623
Loan from a fellow subsidiary RERZMBRARZER 272 - - 272
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary &R ZHEA A ZIE 236 - - 236

101,882 10,502 220,532 332,916
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBI RMEE (])

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—ZT_-_—F+-_HA=1+—HIFFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 7.

(d) Interest rate risk (d)
The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
and liabilities other than cash at banks, other
borrowings, shareholders’ loan and loan from a

fellow subsidiary.

The directors consider the Group’s exposure of the
bank balances to cash flow interest rate risk is not
significant as the interest rate fluctuation on bank
balances is minimal and the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in interest rates. As at 31 December 2021
and 2020, the Group's other borrowings, shareholders’
loan and loan from a fellow subsidiary bore fixed
interest rates which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. Management considers the fair value
interest rate risk is insignificant to the Group.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is performed.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy in relation to interest rate risks. The
directors monitor the Group's exposure on an
ongoing basis and will consider hedging interest rate
risk should the need arise.

(e)

Categories of financial instruments (e)

THEE
REBHRATIRN S RE E
(BRASLASEED)

Financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost
(including cash and cash
equivalents)

Financial liabilities =y =Ni
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  ZEk 5 NG BRI S RE B (&

(f) Fair values (f)

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.
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¢ERMIEDE
2021 2020
—s-—F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
379,979 383,367
327,043 305,323
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FeaMBHEME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

8.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The following disclosures of fair value measurements use
a fair value hierarchy that categories into three levels the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of
the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31
December:

Description 1 4t

BT —F1+_HA=1+—HItFE

8.

DIRBEEE

ARNBE/EMSL2EERTERY
ETZBFR 5% 5 E B E I
FIREFABEAN 2 ER - TXH
BRAREERAAENA(EE
HIZMERMHP AU EAREBED
BABIED R={ERER :

F—RBA HREEXABNEE
MG RE CRERE) -

F_FZBA BRE-RBREAOREN
oy BEEXBENERXBEEBES
Hh O B A B

F=RBA EEXRBENTAIESR
AR ©

AEENBRRSNBLEEHERNE
HEBEREEE AR =EEREE
AR#EH

(@ R+=—RA=+—HBz2REE
EARIRE

Fair value measurements using:

ERAUTERFEBNAAEBE:

Recurring fair value
measurements:

Investment properties
Commercial — PRC

Level 2

et 1
2021 2020
—E--F —T-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
172,528 181,170

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, there were no transfer between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3.

BHE_Z - FK_ZFT_ZTF
= A= Bl e
NE—Ho B EER - EE
AKELE=ZR -

RACBIBRIERBR AT /2021 F3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBI RMEE (])

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZ-F-—F+-A=+—HIFE

8. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 8. NAREEE(H)

(b) Disclosure of valuation process used by the (b)
Group and valuation techniques and inputs
used in fair value measurements.

The Board is responsible for the fair value
measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair
value measurements.

The following table gives information about how the
fair values of the Group’'s investment properties

carried at fair value are determined.

Level 2 fair value measurements

rEEFRERGERFRAR
BEFEREANBERMTR
BMAMBHKE -

EERR RV BHREMBRNE
EMBBEAREEE  BEF

=RAREEFE -

MR MABEBEAEREIZ AR
BEENREMENATEER -

Fair value
RAREE
Valuation
Description technique Key Input 2021 2020
Bt fRER T FTEWARE —B-—-F —T_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FH&T
Investment properties Market Price per square 172,528 181,170
— PRC comparable metre
approach
KREMFE -+ EH Ti5 L BUE BF I RER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MR EME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

9.

HE—ZF=

SEGMENT INFORMATION

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the executive directors, who are
the chief operation decision-makers, the Group has
presented the following reportable segments:

(i) Sale of materials business; and
(i) Properties investment.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the executive
directors monitor the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the following
basis:

(a) Segment assets include all tangible and intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of
rental deposits, intangible assets and other
unallocated head office corporate assets.

(b) Segment liabilities include all liabilities with the
exception of shareholder’s loan, amount due to a
fellow subsidiary, loan from a related company, asset
retirement obligation, other borrowings and other
unallocated head office corporate liabilities.

(c) Segment results are allocated to reportable
segments with reference to sales generated and
expenses incurred by those segments, together with
fair value change of investment properties, selling
and distribution expenses, administrative and
operating expenses and impairment losses of
receivables, net.

The amounts provided to the executive directors with
respect to the information mentioned above are measured
in a manner consistent with that of the consolidated
financial statements.

—F+-H=1—HIFE

9.

AEBRANITEE(REELER
%%)ﬁqn SHEH—TZH R 25
TAZHAH :

(i) HEMBES: &
(i) PIREE -

%%ﬁ”ﬂz%ﬁ&%ﬁ%ﬁZﬁﬁ
M HITESBEATEEERSA
WOz XE  BEMAIE

(@) PHEEREMARTLLETLE
FM&//\L@L@F 1@T@?§Tﬂi
Re BEEERHMARD A
MEREREE -

b) HBEEBEMEAE BTE
EREER BENRRMEBAR
HIE - REBEARZER &
Fﬁ@ﬁﬁ HERREMEK

DEBMERPEBE -

() NHEESLEZFNBRMELZ
HENFAX  ERREVELR
BEEZY HELDHEMAX 17
T 4% B S DA % P WS IRRL (B
EIEFEMAORER 2RO -

MEHITEEFIREAR LA RS
0N B A B IR A — B
FRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MBmERME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—FT-——F+-A=+—HIFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. OHER(E)
An analysis of the Group's revenue, results, assets and AREBAE/RD A 2 AREBWA - 3
liabilities for the Group's reportable segments is as & BENMBEZWTTHT
follows:
Sale of
materials Properties
business investment Total
HE
MREB MERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THT
For the year ended BE-E-_—-%
31 December 2021 +-A=t-HLEE
Revenue from external customers IVERE P IA 321,077 321,844
Gross profit E7 15,151 767 15,918
Fair value change on investment BRENEANEEED
properties - (13,870) (13,870)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEHEY (7,560) - (7,560)
Administrative and operating expenses  {TH R & &% (936) (2,054) (2,990)
Impairment losses of receivables, net MBI EEE 58 (334,952) (5,371) (340,323)
Segment results DEEE (328,297) (20,528) (348,825)
Unallocated: AR :
Other gains, net and interest income H RS B E WA 11,009
Administrative and operating expenses TR R & &% (11,922)
Impairment loss of intangible assets BYEEREER (450)
Loss from operation IREEE (350,188)
Finance costs BEKA (6,667)
Loss before tax BriiAIE R (356,855)
Income tax expense BHAX (918)
Loss for the year FEBE (357,773)

1 08 ENVIRO ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2021 ANNUAL REPORT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FeMEmERME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B E - —Ff - HA=+—HIFEF

Properties
investment

HK$'000
TR

316,774

(258,123)

Unallocated

AAE

HK$'000
TR

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. EER(E\E)
Sale of
materials
business
HE
WRIEK
HK$'000
TER
At 31 December 2021 R-B--%+-A=+-H
Segment assets NHEE
Unallocated assets APEEE
Total assets BEAHE
Segment liabilities HEBE (9,857)
Unallocated liabilities AOAE
Total liabilities BERSE
Sale of
materials Properties
business  investment
HE
MRIEK MERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER
For the year ended BE-Z--%
31 December 2021 +=B=1+—-HLEE
Capital expenditures BARY

Total

EH
HK$'000
TER

322,444
232,868

(267,980)
(66,214)

Total

Azt
HK$'000
TER

RueERERER AT /2021 45
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FEMBHEMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

9.

BE—F-—F+-_HA=+—HIFFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. HWER (&)

Sale of

materials Property

business investment Total

HE

MR WEEKE BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET
For the year ended BE2-2-%F%
31 December 2020 +tZB=t—-HLEE
Revenue from external customers SNERR UL A 53,591 463 54,054
Gross profit eS| 136 463 599
Fair value change on investment RENMEANLEBEED
properties = (2,023) (2,023)
Administrative and operating expenses  {TEI R A& ZH L (1,160) (1,726) (2,886)
Segment results NE T (1,024) (3,286) (4,310)
Unallocated: AR
Other gains, net and interest income H RIS R E WA 15,490
Administrative and operating expenses  {TH R4S & B 57 (15,162)
Loss from operation KEER (3,982)
Finance costs BERAR (21,794)
Loss before tax B AIER (25,776)
Income tax expense FEHRRAX =
Loss for the year EEEHIE (25,776)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FeaMBHEME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE—FT-_—F+_HA=1+—HIFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DIER (E)
Sale of
materials Properties
business investment Total
e |
MEER MERE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TET TET
At 31 December 2020 R-ZBE-Z&+-A=1+—-H
Segment assets DEMEE 331,926 327,822 659,748
Unallocated assets FPEREE 219,478
Total assets BEES 879,226
Segment liabilities HEBE (5,885) (249,549) (255,434)
Unallocated liabilities N =] (54,080)
Total liabilities ELEp ] (309,514)
Sale of
materials Properties
business investment Unallocated Total
HE ‘
MRS MERE RO @ar
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL FE BT
For the year ended B2-2-%%
31 December 2020 +ZA=t—-HLEE
Capital expenditures BAREY = 32 32
The Group's revenue and non-current assets as at 31 AGBER-_F_—FR_FT_FTH
December 2021 and 2020 are further analysed by T-A=F+ - BZBWARFRBEE
geographical location as follows: BB B E—OTET :
Revenue
KA
2020
—E=-—F —EC-TE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T THT
The United Arab Emirates FH EEE S 2 R E 165,526 3
Kingdom of Bahrain EMEEH 97,454 -
The PRC s 32,197 43,749
Hong Kong B 8,998 10,305
Kingdom of Norway Pk T B 7,751 -
lceland K 7,636 -
State of Qatar RIERE 2,282 -
321,844 54,054

RueERERER AT /2021 45
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBI RMEE (])

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE_—FE - —#1+_-HA=+—HIFE
9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9.
The PRC h
Hong Kong B

7 ERE R ()
Non-current assets
FRBEE
2021 2020
—®_—f —T-TF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET TAET
172,568 181,665
828 887
173,396 182,552

Revenue individually generated from the following
customers contributed more than 10% of the total

revenue of the Group:

KA TEPHERIURAMGAERR
WA 10% A E -

2021 2020

—B-—F —E_THF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trading business segment BESEBDE

Customer A ZEA 165,526 -
Customer B ZFEB 97,454 —*

Customer C ZEC 15,683

Customer D 25D 10,059

Customer E ZFEE 8,777

Customer F ZEF 6,612
X The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total & AU A ARG A EE AU ARI10% A £ -

revenue of the Group.

10. REVENUE 10. WA

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAETT

Revenue from contracts with KEEHEE ZWA

customers

— Sale of materials — HEMR 321,077 53,591
Rental income HE WA 767 463
Total revenue FEN PN 321,844 54,054

All revenue from contracts with customers are recognised

at a point in time.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FeaMBHEME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

10. REVENUE (Continued)

11.

Sales of materials

The Group principally sells aluminum related products and
scrapped copper (2020: building materials and scrapped
copper) to its customers. Sales are recognised when
control of the products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to a customer, there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products and the customer has
obtained legal titles to the products.

Sales to customers are normally made with credit terms
of 30 to 180 days (2020: 30 to 180 days). For new
customers, deposits or cash on delivery may be required.

A receivable is recognised when the products are
delivered to the customers as this is the point in time that
the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

OTHER GAINS, NET

Wavier of interest of other borrowings %A% Et EZF| 8 (f/a+26)

(Note 26)
Exchange gain, net P& H W F 58
Sundry income FEIFUWA
Government subsidy (note) ERATFI B, (Bt aE)

BE—F-—F+-_HA=+—HIFFE

10. WA (&)

HEMH

AEETERAFFPHERERERK
BER (2T« @EMFIEER) o
EEmMNEHECER (EMIMT
BEFZE) AMEMGEEETFPER
EmNABTEEREFPCERER
VEORFTEHER - HERHE o

MEFZHE —REEHHA30=180
H(ZZ-_ZF :302180H) - Bt¥
BPME @ AJReERILESRERHRK -

EUGRIAREm X T 5P R R -
R — 2% - MR B HEERE
IR FRI DM SR B A AR B GR A -

Note: The government subsidy of HK$ Nil (2020: HK$230,000) represented
grants obtained from Employment Support Scheme (“ESS”) under the
Anti-epidemic Fund launched by the Hong Kong SAR Government
supporting the payroll of the Group's employees. Under the ESS, the
Group had to commit to spend these grants on payroll expenses, and
not reduce employee head count below prescribed levels for a specified
period of time. The Group does not have unfulfilled obligations relating
to this program.

1. HfFlkas

2021 2020
B —E_THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAETT

1

230

231

Kiat - BUSHBE AT BT (ZZ ZZ 4 : 230,000/

TEEBRRBMMEL ZHRNERES
TZRBEA B (RSB ) FB) - PAX
HAREXMESHM - RIBRREFE
AEEAAHBZERBARINHFERH
X EEBEATERE TABRL ZER
BEKF o REEILEE L8 2 RETT

Bff-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MBmERME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—FT-——F+-A=+—HIFE

12. INTEREST INCOME 12. FEWA
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Bank interest income HRITH BUA 1
Interest income from loan receivables & B FEUE 7k 2 Fl 2 U A 15,258
15,259
13. FINANCE COSTS 13. EERA

2021 2020
—B-—F —EZFTHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Interest on other borrowings HEMERZFE 20,968
Interest on shareholders’ loan PR E A B =
Interest on factoring of trade receivables JEULE 5 BR IR IEFI B =

Interest on loan from a fellow RERRWB AR ZERK
subsidiary 2R 298

Interest on loan from a related KEBEBERRERZFE
company 445
Interest on lease liabilities HEEEFE 83
21,794
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FeaMBHEME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—FT-—F1+-A=+—HIFE

14. LOSS BEFORE TAX 14. BREAIEE
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging the AEE 7 BRBAIEBEE B THEIE -
following:
2021 2020
—B--F —T_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
Auditor's remuneration ZERDEN &
— Audit services — ZEH RS 1,100 1,100
— Non-audit services — FRER 50 50
Cost of inventories sold EHEFEERARN 305,926 53,455
Depreciation of property, ME - BERRETE
plant and equipment a1
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 2,547
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEMREESRE
plant and equipment 47
Expenses related to short-term leases %G HATR E4ERIRI 301
Impairment loss on intangible asset EE ERERE =
Impairment losses of receivables, net:  JEWFUIE BB & 18/ F 58
— Trade receivables (Note 23) — BB SRR (HEE23) 20,250 -
— Prepayments (Note 24) for: — AT RIBEME A (FI5E24)
(i) Purchase of building materials () BERZEM R 316,614 =
(ii) Others (ii) A 3,459 -
340,323 -
Staff costs, including directors’ BEFRZ (BEESHE)
emoluments
— Salaries, allowances and other — e EBREMEF
benefits 8,293
— Retirement benefit scheme — RIRRAIFT IR
contributions 107
— Social insurance — H2RE 65
8,465
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FEMBHEMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

15.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current income tax BNEAFT 1S5
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BEFEH
— The PRC Enterprise Income Tax — PR EFTER

BE—F-—F+-_HA=+—HIFFE

15. FREHBX

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong for the year, except for one group
entity operating in Hong Kong which is a qualifying
corporate under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime. For
the qualifying group entity, the first HK$2 million of
assessable profits are taxed at the rate of 8.25% (2020:
8.25%) and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at
the rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%).

The PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been provided at a
rate of 25% for a subsidiary in the PRC on its assessable
profits during the year ended 31 December 2021. No
provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
made for the year ended 31 December 2020.

BAFNSRIOIBRAEEREBEEN
EETERBUR MR E16.6% (=T =
TF :16.5%)FHREME - E—HRE
P AT ) 5 B B BE T FI) S B W A Il 9
BEBLE  -HEBEREEETEME -
FERMEFNE2EEB THRHEE
825% (=T =_FF :825%) ' #&H
BB FEART R MIETRE16.56% (ZF =
TE 16.5%) BIFi o

HE_T-_—F+ZA=+—BHL*%F
- HENBARIZFRETCEMER
Tk B e ER T i A 4R B 2R 25% AT IR
B HE_ZE_TF+_A=+—H
WEFE - WERPBESEMSHFRE
B o

ENVIRO ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2021 ANNUAL REPORT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FeaMBHEME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE_—FE-——#F1+_-HA=+—HIFE

15.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 15.

Fri&®iRa < (/)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and e MIREAR RS N st
accounting loss at applicable tax rate is as follows: EEERIT :
2021 2020
—B-—F —ET-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before tax BREERTEE (356,855) (25,776)
Tax calculated at the domestic income &% Al /ZHER B NFTE B %
tax rate in the respective jurisdictions F+E 2 fi18 (5,143)
Tax effect of: J/A—I—IE B BB eE -
— income not subject to tax and BARBUA KA
expenses not deductible M (487)
— tax losses not recognised — RIERHIAEE 5,630
Income tax expense FRigfif 2 -

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
unrecognised tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profits streams from respective entities within the
Group. As at 31 December 2021, the unrecognised tax
losses to be carried forward against future taxable income
amounted to approximately HK$569.4 million (2020:
HK$232.5 million). Tax losses amounting to approximately
HK$485.6 million (2020: HK$148.7 million) will expire at
various dates up to and including year of 2026 (2020:
2025), the remaining tax losses of approximately HK$83.8
million (2020: HK$83.8 million) have no expiry date.

ARELTEIAEB RS ERARK
wmA - M E R ERTIEEERER
EEMRIBEE NR_T-_—F+_A
=7 - ﬂiﬁ&*’ TRIAE1E4)569.4 B
BENL(TZE_TF 232585 8/ET)
A AEEAREINRRERTRA - &
A48 6E BB (T F:
1487 BERIL)MBREEBEERESRS
WEEZE-AF(ZE_ZF: =F
TEF)NSMEBEBER - RepBiEE
BH838EESBTL(ZE_FF : 838
BEBIT) &R A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBI RMEE (])

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZ—-ZF—
16. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: nil).

== A=1—ALEE

16.

o=

VTEREEZ T - —F+_A=+—
BIEFERMSERTEKE(ZZ =
TE )

17. LOSS PER SHARE 17. BRER
(a) Basic (a) B
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss @Hﬁﬁm)ﬁﬂéjﬂﬁéﬁ —EF——
attributable to the owners of the Company by the ERZB-_TBEFE+-_H= —1— H
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue WFEEZRNANEIHEA AESER
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and B DA B 21T T B A O #E S #Et
2020. &
The calculation of the basic loss per share ARNREEAEGHBRERNER
attributable to the owners of the Company is based TR T &gt &
on the following data:
2020
—T-FTF
Loss attributable to the owners of XA RS AE(LER
the Company (HK$'000) (F%7T) (357,773) (25,776)
Weighted average number of B BT B INE T
ordinary shares in issue (FHL)
(thousand shares) 542,392 477,228
(b) Diluted (b) #8
The Group had share options outstanding during the AEERBE-_ZS-_—FRK_Z
year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. The share —EF+A=1T+—RHLFEER
options did not have a dilutive effect on loss per MARITEEREIRNE - Z5HBIREY

share for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

BE-_ T - R _ZT-_FTHF
T=A=E— Eti&Z#h%
B EHEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FeaMBHEME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_F_—F+_A=+—HUFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W% - MERRE
Computer
Leasehold equipment Office
improvements  and software equipment Total
HEmE ERRER
% Bl BAERE EEHY
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEx TER TR
COST: ﬁz{x :
At 1 January 2020 “E-TF-F-H 495 83 362 940
Addition ‘Zﬁﬁ = = 32 32
Disposal HE - - (198) (198)
Exchange difference ER =S - - 5 5
At 31 December 2020 and RZE-_FF+
1 January 2021 NZEZ—%F
Exchange difference EHER
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Z:irERFMAE :
AND IMPAIRMENT:
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-ZF—-f—A - 83 207 290
Depreciation nE - - 91 91
Disposal HE = - (151) (151)
Exchange difference EHER
At 31 December 2020 and R=ZE-FF+=-f=+—H
1 January 2021 RZZE-—5—-A-H
Depreciation nE
Exchange difference ERER

At 31 December 2021

RZE-_—F+-A=+—H

NET BOOK AMOUNT:
At 31 December 2021

BRI
RZB-—F+-A=+—H

At 31 December 2020

—E-FF+-R=+—H 495 = 51 546
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MBmERME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—FT-——F+-A=+—HIFE

120
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19. LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. HERFHAREEE
Disclosures of lease-related items: MHEMRBEE HE
2021 2020
—E-—F —T_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At 31 December: Rt+t-—A=+—8":
Right-of-use assets EREEE
— Office premises — RAEYE -
Lease commitments of REEE 2 HEAIE
short-term leases -
The maturity analysis, based on AEBHEGERE
undiscounted cash flows, RAGFIRE R
of the Group's lease liabilities FHAR ST
is as follows:
— Less than 1 year ——FR -
Year ended 31 December: HE+-_A=+—HItFE:
Depreciation charge of ERAEEECITERS
right-of-use assets
— Office premises — WAEYE 2,547
Lease interests HEFS 83
Expenses related to short-term leases %5 HATH & ERARI X 301
Total cash outflow for leases MEZHRe R BT 3,669



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MR EME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZ T -—F 1+ -H=1+—HIFFE

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES

On 29 December 2017, Qianhai Guoxing Finance Lease
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (literal translation of the
Chinese name) (“Qianhai Guoxing”), an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with a third party (the “Vendor”),
pursuant to which Qianhai Guoxing has agreed to acquire
certain commercial properties (the “Properties”) from the
Vendor for a consideration of RMB150 million and Qianhai
Guoxing paid the full consideration to the Vendor on the
same date. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
sale and purchase agreement, the Vendor is required to
complete all the procedures necessary to transfer the title
of the Properties to Qianhai Guoxing on or before 30
December 2018. On 1 August 2018, a supplementary
agreement was signed in which both parties agreed to
postpone the transfer of the title of the Properties to a
date on or before 27 December 2020. Subsequent to 27
December 2020, no title of the Properties was transferred
to Qianhai Guoxing.

On 29 December 2017, Qianhai Guoxing entered into
another agreement with the Vendor, pursuant to which
Qianhai Guoxing has agreed to lease the Properties back
to the Vendor for a period of 3 years starting from 29
December 2017. Upon the commencement of the lease,
the Vendor paid RMB3.0 million to Qianhai Guoxing as a
form of non-refundable pre-lease interest. Lease
payments, calculated as interest charged at a fixed rate of
9% per annum against a principal of RMB150 million, are
repayable quarterly. At the end of the lease period, upon
full settlement of all outstanding principal and interest
from the Vendor to Qianhai Guoxing, the Vendor can
repurchase the Properties from Qianhai Guoxing for RMB1
(equivalent to HK$1).

20.

R E K

RZF—+tF+ZHA=Z+1hB A2
RAZEEE2ENBRAR N SEHERE
MECRI)BRAR([AEEHERE]) =
F=FTER DL EE W - Btk
AEEEERERESBES TER
Y ZEWE])  REAAREK150
BET AEBREERRBEREH X
NE28RE BEEEHEIBCRIR
G BHFEANZ-ZE-NF+=A
ST HR AR EEZEMEZFR
ERTRHBREBEZEVNEFE - R
“E-NFENA—H EFRTERT
WEREEREEZSEME AR
BT FFF A FTERZHZA
R-ZE—ZTFE+=-A=++H%
AR R EFARE o

R-—ZE—+E+=-_A=+N8 " 88
BEHEEFFILS D Bt
ANERED RELE M mETE S
BE-ZE—tF+=-_A=+NhHEAEH
=F - NHERKE  BEHEMANE
B ARKI0EETIEARAR
EEANE - HENFTEUAFBEER
WE - WAARESBARKIGOEE T
BREEEMERI%E  BRFEE
E o REEHXR &5 A ANEG ] E
BHEEMBREEAS KA EE -
EAUARENTTHRER1BT) B
AGEEED B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FEMBHEMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

21.

HE-Z=

— A=t —ALEE

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. EWER(E)
Considering the economics of the above transaction and EED PR S 7 & B W - BOE
the nature and value of the repurchase option, it is almost BREZEBNRER EAAETEER
certain that the repurchase option will be exercised. BIEEBETE Bt S2HOE
Therefore, sale and lease back accounting applies to the STERIENE AN Lt 28 - BUE S R
above arrangement, resulting in the principal of RMB150 R_EBE - FRER_ZE-_FTF+_H
million and RMB150 million (equivalent to approximately =t+—H¥AEBEARKIG0BET
HK$183.5 million and HK$178.2 million) as at 31 RAR¥150B & T (HERA 1835
December 2021 and 2020 being accounted for as a loan AEALK1782B &R L) AKEYA
receivable with the properties acting as a security against EUNE R MZEWEIEALER
this receivable. FIBZPER o
Up to the date of this report, the Group has filed the BEEARERE  AEEZRERE
relevant document to the court to apply for seizure of the REAXHEBEEHE TN ZE
Properties from Vendor. The Board of Directors MHE -BEEERE ZEWEZAR
considered that the fair value of the Properties is higher E{E}Tuﬁzfﬁ OS] Eﬁr‘qﬁzﬂ SNEol:
than the carrying amount of the loan receivables and the B 2 AER_ET-_—F+—-A4
relevant interest receivables and considered no =+—BEAELRRE -
impairment is necessary as at 31 December 2021.
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 21. BEWHE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FEHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At fair value RARER
At 1 January R—H—H 181,170 171,946
Change in fair value ARBEEZS (13,870) (2,023)
Exchange difference bE H, =% 5,228 11,247
At 31 December Nr-=H=n—H 172,528 181,170
The estimated aggregate fair value of investment M AR BEAEN _ZE-_—%F+=

properties as at 31 December 2021 was approximately
HK$172.5 million (2020: HK$181.2 million), which has
been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out by
RHL Appraisal Limited, an independent professional
valuer.

B=+—B#A172688A8T (=%

— ERES ¢

18128838 mT)

ERBY

MERMKFTHEREBRQRET
EEMSHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FeaMBHEME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

21.

Note:

(a)

(b)

(c)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment properties

Rental income of approximately HK$767,000 (2020: HK$463,000) was
recognised in profit or loss for investment properties during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Non-current assets pledged as security

As at 31 December 2021, the investment properties of approximately
HK$172.5 million (2020: HK$181.2 million) were pledged for other
borrowings (note 26).

Minimum lease receipts

Certain of the investment properties located in Yingkou City, Liaoning
province, the PRC, are leased to tenants under operating leases ranging
from 1 to 8 years. Management intends to lease the remaining
investment properties to earn rental income.

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases as
follows:

No later than one year —&FR
Later than one year but not later than five years —&{&18 HER
Later than five years hFE

HE—FT-_—F+_HA=1+—HIFE

21. REWE (\)

Kt

(a)

(b)

(c)

REBRENERBERIAZEHE

BE-Z-—F+-A=+—BIFE '3
REYER B ERE S WAL 767,000%5
TL(ZZTZF4F : 463,000 7T) ©

FRBEECIEIFERER

R-E-_—F+_A=+—H8 BEYE
AN EEET(ZE-T4  1812B8BT)
BRI LUEER A B 3R (3£ 26) ©

W RERE

URPEEEREOTMNAEREMEIR
BREHELAETES  BEHENF—ZEN
FoERERAERNRREDE RRES
LONE

R-ZE-Z—FR-F-_ZFF+-_A=1+—
B - AREER TR T E T R
XA ERIFRREES T

2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET

744 382

687

55

1,124

RueERERER AT /2021 45

123



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEHREME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z - ZFE-—F+-F=+—HIFFZE
22. SUBSIDIARIES 22. MIEAAE
Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at N-_ZE-_—F+_A=+—H ' &ARn
31 December 2021 are as follows: BIZCEEBMBRARCEFBET -
Percentage of
Place of Particulars of equity attributable Principal activities and
Name incorporation  paid up capital to the Company place of operation
a8 wER AL L AN B EL
FriEit BRREER EREIL FEEBREE I
Direct Indirect
HiE SiE:2
Qianhai Shitong Supply Chain The PRC HK$186 million - 100 Trading of building materials
(Shenzhen) Company Limited* s 186 BEHE T (note (i) in the PRC
("Qianhai Shitong") (et ) MPEEEREME
RS BHERE ORI AR AR
(TAEtRE])
Qianhai Guoxing* The PRC RMB151 million - 100 Finance leasing in the PRC
7l /5 0 6 * HHE ARE1B1EETT RPEmREES
Enviro Energy Management Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Investment holding in
Services Limited BE 187T Hong Kong
REEEERBEBRAA REBREER
Huan Neng International Trading The PRC RMB4.5 million - 100 Properties investment in
(Yingkou) Company Limited* A AREASEETT the PRC
("HNYK") NABETYERE
REHEBRES (Z0)BRAR*
([ReeE0 )
Liaoning Taogibao Mall Management The PRC RMB100 million - 100 Properties investment in
Co. Ltd.* (“Liaoning Taoqibao") A ARKE10BET the PRC
REARERREEERAR R BEIT R E
(MREHRE])
Huan Neng Industrial (Yingkou) The PRC RMB8 million - 100 Properties investment in
Company Limited* ( HN Industrial’) ARKESEHET the PRC
RREEX(ER)ERA KRBT RRE
(MREeE])
Smart Gainer Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Trading of scrapped copper
IERRAR G 17%87T in Hong Kong
NEBE EREN
Shenzhen Jun Heng Trading Company The PRC HK$10 million - 100  Trading of building materials
Limited* (“SZ Jun Heng") #F 1088BT and aluminium related
FEEE SER AR * ([FRYEE]) products in the PRC
KB E B REME X
RAEHER
Pentart Resource Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 — Trading of aluminium related
BEERERAHE BE 187T products in Hong Kong
REBEBIRBEER
Pentart Energy Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Trading of aluminium related
et e R AR AR BB 10,0007 7T products in Hong Kong

RELERREBER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

& MR R (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZ T -—F 1+ -H=1+—HIFFE

22. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2020, the Group's shareholding on Qianhai Shitong
was diluted from 100% to 25% due to suspected forgery or
unauthorised use of the company chop on increasing in the registered
capital, addition of a new shareholder and amendment to the articles of
association of Qianhai Shitong (“Unauthorised Dilution”). The
subsidiary is in the possession of its legal representative and the
subsidiary has issued a written warning to the said legal representative
to not conduct any act without the Board's approval. The Board
instructed the shareholder of subsidiary to apply for the relevant
documents from the Market Supervision Administration of Shenzhen
Municipality (“SZ Market Supervision Administration”). In July 2021,
upon completion of withdrawing and nullifying the Unauthorised
Dilution, the Group regained the legal ownership and company chop of
Qianhai Shitong.

(ii) As at 31 December 2021, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group
amounted to HK$1.5 million (2020: HK$595,000), were deposited in
bank accounts opened with banks in the PRC where the remittance of
funds is subject to foreign exchange control.

@ These subsidiaries are wholly-owned foreign established in the PRC.
English company names are translated for identification purposes only.

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

22. MtEAT (&)

(i) R-ZZE-TFE+-_A=+—8 AR HE
ESR AR EF A AT EE LA s &
AN —BEFRER RISRADE R 2 A5
ERMA AEERANEGHBZRER
100% #HEZE25% ([ RSTERH ) - ZM
BARIBHEEERRATE  MZHBEAR
BERAZEERRAZFHERES ERkHEHE
AEESSHAENTESELEMITR - ES
EOETHBRARARRERFRITHSESE
ERIFRITHEEBEER]) HFEMEBX
e RZTZ—F+ AT KA EARE
BEREE  ANEECEFREATHAE
MA@z ARIEE o

(ii) R-ZFE-_—F+-A=+—8 x£@2R
SRBREEEMRIEEAT(ZT_5F :
595,000 78 7T ) TR A R B3R N ERTER P + T
BEESHNEZTINEEH -

* ZEWMBRRARNKIMNIEBERE - &
XAFEENEFEEES

23. EREZERM

Trade receivables FEUWE 5 RR K
Less: Provision for impairment losses B REEEEE

Trade receivables, net e E ZERFFEE

2021 2020
—EoEF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FBT
22,528

(20,920) (378)
22,150

The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors range generally
from 30 to 180 days (2020: 30 to 180 days).

Trade receivables from certain customers of the Group,
whose contractual cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest, were factored to reputable
financial institutions under non-recourse factoring
arrangement. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, no trade
receivables were under factoring arrangement.

AEENERESERERNEEH K
N FI0BE180H(=ZZT =4 : 30
HZ180H) 1% -

AEEKXRBETEFHNE SRR
(REMHSREERNAE RFIE)
EEERERELZHF TRETEER
e REE - RZE_—FR_F
—EFE+_A=+t—H FREZHR
BRI E SR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBI RMEE (])

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE_—FE - —#1+_-HA=+—HIFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the end of
reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:

FEWE 5 B ()

RBEHR REEZAH2EKE

0-30 days OHZ=30H
121-365 days 121H&E3656H
Over 365 days 365 HIA £

BRI RE DA T
2021 2020
g —T—TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT TR
2,785
19,365
22,150

Movements of loss allowance for trade receivables:

RUWE ZERKNERBE 2 EF

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$ 000
T THTT

378 J7s
20,250 —
292 3

At 1 January R—H—H
Provision for impairment B R
Exchange differences MEHZER

At 31 December RT+-=—H=+—8H

The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS 9
to provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The expected credit
losses also incorporate forward-looking information.

AEERBEEV KBRS ERNFIR

HETNZBen EZRBREREEBEEL

B HAMERKESERRIRB LS

BEREHRER - RFTERYEERR

W E ZEFERBEAREERRE

fxﬁ(&ﬁHHEI%("*E BHEEEETT
BEAEEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FEMBHERME ()
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZ T -—F 1+ -H=1+—HIFFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

23. EWE R (&)

31-60days  61-90days 91-120days 121-365 days Over 365 days
Current past due past due past due past due past due Total
Il k] ki k] ki k]
31Z60A 61290 91Z120R 121Z365H #8365 @it
At 31 December 2021 R-Z--E+-F=1-A
Weighted average expected loss rate METIRBEEERR 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 100% 87%
Receivable amount (HK$000) NS (TEL) 782 - - - 2,982 20,335 24,099
Loss allowance (HK$000) ERE(TEL) - - - - (585) 20,335) (20,920)
At 31 December 2020 RZF-FF+ZA=1-A
Weighted average expected loss rate NELHRSEEFRR 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 2% 2%
Recsivable amount (HK$'000) RlFE(TEL) 2785 - = = = 19,743 2528
Loss allowance (HK$000) ERiE(TEL) - - - - - (378) (379)

In December 2021, the Group obtained a legal opinion in
relation to the recoverability of certain trade receivables,
and are of the view that commencement of litigation
against such counterparties to recover the outstanding
balances may not be cost-effective and the recovery of
such trade receivables is remote. Accordingly, impairment
amounted to approximately HK$19.7 million is provided

during the year ended 31 December 2021.

R-ZT-——F+=-F KEERATK
EETEZRKERERESEEZER
RAETHZEEFFRAEAEFAMN
W Bl REBER A RET A AR -
W EIZEE S5 RUWERRA AT REMEERM -
At Rz -—F+_-A
=+ —BHULEFEFNRNI197TEEST
RURERERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FEMBHEMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE_—FE - —#1+_-HA=+—HIFE

24. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 24. &  BAAREREMER

RECEIVABLES

2021 2020
—B--F —EFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET

Current portion TEE A

Deposits ®e 27

Prepayments for: ERTHIEE 2FENFHIE

— purchase of building materials — BEEEZEME 321,208 311,862

— others — Hth 5,396 1,445

Less: loss allowance of prepayment & : B ~3I|IBE B 2 BT B

for: BB
— purchase of building — B EREME
materials (Note (i) (KIaE () (321,208) -
— others — Hf (3,459) =
Interest receivable FEU I B 42,169 40,942
Less: loss allowance of interest R A BB ERE
receivable (1,247) (1,271)
Consideration receivable from disposal H&E D8 AFEHEEE
of assets classified as held for sale U KRE 51,961 50,449
Less: loss allowance of consideration & : HE DB AR IELHE
receivable from disposal of BERIKRE
assets classified as held for sale EE s (837) (812)
Consideration receivable from disposal H &% & ¥ 2 e (B
of investment properties 92,994 90,288
Less: loss allowance of consideration i : &% &Y
receivable from disposal of RABE 1B
investment properties (714) (693)
186,299 492,297

Note: Bitat -

(i) In December 2021, the Group obtained a legal opinion in relation to the 0] RZZEZ—F+A AEERATKEEE
recoverability of certain prepayment for purchase of building materials, Eﬁﬁﬂz%:ﬁgﬁ RIB ) A RE ME IS AR
and are of the view that commencement of litigation against such RERZEENFERBEZFAR
counterparties may not be cost-effective and the recovery of such Z_ﬁ/\ﬁk$xﬂlﬁnﬂllﬁl@32%ﬁﬁ K IE #) 7]
prepayments is remote. Accordingly, impairment amounted to REMEM - Al RBE=_ZT=_—F+=A
approximately HK$321.2 million was provided during the year ended 31 :+ AIEFEFRABERENI2128E8
December 2021. BT o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FeaMBHEME(E)

ended 31 December 2021 #ZE_—FE_-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

For the year

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

25. BENEZRRREMENRE

2021 2020

—E-—fF ZETF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade payables (note(i)) ERE SRR (KA ) 4,669 3,834

Other payables H b e 308 62,376 54,528
Advance from a former shareholder & BiA% BUKEN 2 25k (BT 5t (i)

(note(ii) 18,392
Receipt in advance EE Y 1,209
Interest payable FERTFI B 3,913
Accrued liabilities fEztBE 14,118

95,994
Notes: Htat

(i)

(ii)

The amounts are repayable according to normal credit terms of 30 to 60
days (2020: 30 to 60 days).

The ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of reporting
period, based on invoice date, is as follows:

(i) BRAFERE-REEHIOAECOH(ZF
—ZTH :30E60H)HE -

R|ERR - REFZAHZENEZEX
ZIRERDATANT

2021 2020
B il el -
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FHET

Within 30 days 30 KA
Over 365 days 365 H A E

3,834

3,834

As at 31 December 2020, the amount was due from Mr. Li Sen, a
former shareholder.

In June 2021, the Company, as a garnishee, received a garnishee order
absolute from the High Court, is obliged to make payment to the
judgment creditor, which shall be treated as a valid discharge of the
liability to Mr. Li Sen, who was the judgement debtor.

The whole amount was settled to the judgment creditor during the year,
the Group treated as settlement to the liability of Mr. Li Sen.

(il RZT-TE+-_A=+—80 FHESEA
AT AR ER 2 AR S5 AE RO IR ©

KRB —FXA  AREMERFE=ZFEBKA
WEISEERNFE=EBABYEmS B
A A E AR - kSR A E K
REERFRELE (RAEBEBANELE -

RAFEEBFR-HRHEEREANZIHR
B ARERESEEHFRELNEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FEMBHEMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z - ZFE-—F+-F=+—HIFFZE

26. OTHER BORROWINGS 26. HER

FEmEE D

Non-current
Other borrowings — secured

HiER — HET

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$ 000
T THTT
216,324 210,030

The other borrowings are dominated in RMB and secured
by the Group's investment properties, which have a
carrying amount of approximately HK$172.5 million (2020:
approximately HK$181.2 million) as at 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the bank
assigned the loans and relevant accrued interests at an
aggregate consideration of RMB176.8 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$216.3 million) to an independent
third party (the “Lender”). Subsequently, in August 2020,
the Group entered into a loan agreement with the Lender
of RMB176.8 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$210.0 million) for a period of three years at a fixed rate
of 5% per annum, with interest payable annually. The
relevant other borrowings as at 31 December 2021 and
2020 is classified as non-current liabilities of the Group. In
June 2021, the Lender and the Group entered into an
interest waiver agreement, pursuant to which the Lender
agreed to waive the right to collect interest on other
borrowings from 18 August 2020 to 31 December 2021,
resulting in a gain on waiver of interest of other
borrowings of approximately HK$8.7 million during the
year ended 31 December 2021 (Note 11).

EREMERAARETELHAASE
B IREMEEER  ZEMERZ
E-_—F+_A=+—HZEEES
IR ERBT(ZE_FF + 4
181.2B8%87T) °

HE_ZT-_ZTF+_A=+—H1L#HF
[ RITUBREARK1768BE T
(FBERA2163BEB L) MBILE=
HTERA LD &G KR AR R T
BoHE RZZE-ZTFNA ' ARQ
AIEERAMRARK 17688 &t (M
ER4210.08 &8I L ER R
BH=F  REEFNEL%  BFX
MR -A R —FR_-FT
—EF+_A=+—H H@EEME
R BEEAEENERBEE - B
—E- A BERABKERE
UABERRHE Bt ERARE
NeE T _ZFNA+NBE_Z
:—$+_H_+ =R @ SRIPSNER
M BYREBE—_ZE-_—F+-A
S+ HALFEZHMERFERR
EEREH8.78EB T (HE11) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR RME (8]R)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z - ZFE-—#+_-F=1+—HIFFZE
27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
Ordinary shares
Number of of per value of
shares  HK$0.05 each
BREE
0.05/87T 2
BREE EERG
‘000 HK$'000
FHR FET
Authorised: ERE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, NZEZZT =B
1 January 2021 and 31 December :2_$¢+ A=+—8"
2021 “E-—4%—-A-Bk
—E-—4%+-A=+—H 1,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: Eﬁﬁ&%ﬂ'
At 1 January 2020 R-Z-ZTF—HA—H 452,392 22,620
Placing of new shares (note (i) Fe &R (e ) 90,000 4,500
At 31 December 2020, 1 January 2021 —EEFE+_A=t—8"
and 31 December 2021 :Z: F-A—HK
—E-—%+=ZA=+—H 542,392 27,120

Note:

Hrat -

(i) On 22 September 2020, 90 million ordinary shares were issued at the (i)
subscription price of HK$0.2288 per share by way of placement to not

less than six placees. The proceeds after netting off related transaction
costs from the placement were approximately HK$20.2 million, among
which HK$4.5 million were credited to the share capital account and the
remaining balance of HK$15.7 million were credited to the share

premium account.

—E-EFAA=F+=A 0EERTRER
LA A% 0.2288 % 7T 2 REBE AL & A AT
DRRNEEARAEST - RRBIEHIBRBER
SRRAWEL BT3B 5202 BEBTT
HPAE BB TR ARKE - MeR%E15.7

BEBITABARMGER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MBmERME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B E——Ff —HA=+—HIFEF

28. CASH FLOW INFORMATION — FINANCING 28. HEeREEH — REETH
ACTIVITIES
This section sets out the movement of liabilities from REHEHIINEE T _—FR_T_F
financing activities for the years ended 31 December 2021 F+-_A=Z+—HIFEXREMEE
and 2020. BEBEEH -

Liabilities from financing activities

REMERDZER
Amountdue  Loanfrom  Loanfrom Bank and
Shareholders'’ o afellow arelated afellow Lease Interest other
loan subsidiary ~ company  subsidiary liabilities payable  borrowings Total
EfiEZ REBELE RERZHE #4R

BRER  WELAEME 8% DAZER  EEBR  EMAME  AHER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
Thn T T TR T T T TR

Asat 1 January 2020 R-Z-ZF-f-H 10,652 - 5,083 - 3,285 - 180,526 199,546
Net cash inflowsloutiows) Ref\/ (i) 58 7740 2% - (5,554 (3,368) - - (046)
Non-cash movements FReEe
— interest charged —HEER - - 45 298 83 3700 17,268 21,79%
— reclassify as other payable —ENABEENENTE (18392) - (5,528) 5,528 - - - (18392)
— exchange difference —EBiEE - - - - - 13 12,23 12,449

Asat 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021~ RB-EET-A=+-AR
“5--%-f-R 210,030 214,451

Net cash inflows/[outflows) RewA/ (L) 8 2851
Non-cash movements FResg
—interest charged —fl8EH 4132 6297
— wavier of interest of other borrowings —EWEFHEHE (W 1)
(Note 11) (8,705) (8,70)
—exchange difference —EXER 60 624 6354

Asat 31 December 2021 R-Z-—%+-f=1-H 10184 - 216,324 246,910
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MR EME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(a)

On 12 May 2011, share option schemes (“2011
Share Option Scheme"”) were approved and
adopted pursuant to resolutions of the Company.
The purpose of the 2011 Share Option Scheme was
to enable the Group to recognise the contribution of
the participants to the Group and to motivate the
participants to continue working for the benefit of
the Group by offering the participants an opportunity
to have personal interest in the share capital of the
Company. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
share options to any employees, consultants and
advisers of the Company or its subsidiaries, including
executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive directors, to subscribe for shares of the
Company. The 2011 Share Option Scheme remain in
force for a period of ten years with effect from 12
May 2011.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
share options may be granted under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Company may not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company, or may not exceed a
maximum of 30% should the shareholders of the
Company renew the 10% limit, from time to time
which have been duly allotted and issued.

The exercise price for shares under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme may be determined by the Board at
its absolute discretion but in any event will be at
least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a
business day; (i) the average of the closing prices of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the
relevant option; and (iii) the nominal value of the
shares on the date of grant of the option.

e T - —Ff+_A=+—HItFE

(a)

29. ERAESHE

ARBAR=_T——FHEA+Z=H
RIBARRADRZRIL AL RNE
PergstEl ([ =T — —FBRER
Bl —FT——FRRESIN
BHNRBEBETLEENART
BRAEREAEDZOEE - FR
SEREsESREHANREME
AEBEONSEH N - EFGAH
BRERBBRETAAB LA
MEBARMEMES - BRR&#A
B BREHT FRTRBL
FRTES URBAQAMK
e —E——FREBREEE =
E——FAA+-_ARTFAR
e

BIE T ——FHEREEEAK
A B A ] H At BE AR #E 5 81 A BE 3%
HHBRES R 2 RNDEE &%
TEBAKRDN G TR EX AL
BITHEBITIRAM10% » M
AABIPEEREFHT10% KR H - Bl
=Z A EBE30% °

—T——FREREEEBE KD
TEEATHREFEE2RBBR
T BEREMER TRIDEAESNA
THREE : () RHAHBAER
EEB)BXMEARKRMEN
PR T E : (i) B BB
Bt B HA AT A2 R A B P&
B R P s a F A R W &
K (jii) 3% th 8 B 7 B HR e B0
{5 °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEHREME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-Z=

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder of the Company or an independent non-
executive director or any of their respective
associates, representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue on the date of
such grant and an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares of the Company at the
date of grant in excess of HK$5 million, in any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting. In addition,
any share options granted to any one person in
excess of 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time, in any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The share options granted may be exercised at any
time or times during a period to be determined and
notified by the Board which period of time shall
commence after the date of grant of the share
options and expire on such date as determined by
the Board in any event no later than 10 years from
the date of the grant of such share options. A
nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the grant of a share option under the
2011 Share Option Scheme.

—SEr= A= —ENeSTE

BT & (18)
(@ (&)
PMER+ — @ A BRI - AR F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

& MR R (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

HE—T-—F+=—A=+—HIFFE

(b) Movements in the number of share options
outstanding and their weighted average exercise
prices for the years ended 31 December 2021 and

2020 are as follows:

At 1 January 2020
Lapsed

29.

BRESE (&)

b) REBEE_ZE-_—FR-ZZT_ZF
+ZBA=1+—HBItEE ' HKRTT
FRERRESE REMEFIIITE
BT :

Weighted
average Number of
exercise price  outstanding
(per share) options
hnEEF
THEE e RATE
(BR) BRERE
HK$
BT
7.12 11,223,649
7.60 (7,953,041)

As at 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021
Lapsed

6.07
6.13

3,270,608

(3,217,399)

As at 31 December 2021

Details of the share options movement during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as

follows:

Exercise price

(per share)
THEE
(BR)
HK$
Expiry dates HHA B
22 June 2021 (note 3) “E--#xA-1+=H
(Hz3)
30 December 2022 (note 3) —E--%+-A=18
(Hz3)

RBEE_FT_—FR_ZF_FHF+_—
A=t BLFEZBEREZHFE
n

Number of outstanding share options
i R AT I IR AE B B
As at Lapsed As at
1 January during 31 December
2021 the year 2021
R=B=-% R=B=-f
-A-H FREXN® TZBE=t-H

3,217,399

(3,217,399)

53,209

3,270,608 (3,217,399) 53,209

BEERERERAR/20214% 13D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBI RMEE (])

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZ T -—F+-HA=+—HIFFE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 29. MERRFERTEI(4E)
(b)  (Continued) (b) (&)
Number of outstanding share options
mATTREBRESA
As at Lapsed As at
Exercise price 1 January during 31 December
(per share) 2020 the year 2020
e RZZ=ZF RZE=ZF
Expiry dates Eal g (BR) —A—H FRELAM  +ZA=t—-A
HK$
BT
4 February 2020 (note 1) “RCRE-AMA
(Bzt1) 7.24 3,565,034 (3,565,034) -
8 July 2020 (note 2) “ZCRELANA
(H2) 7.89 4,388,007 (4,388,007) =
22 June 2021 (note 3) —E-—%5A-t+=H
(Hiit3) 6.13 3,217,399 - 3,217,399
30 December 2022 (note 3) —Z-__F+-R=1H
(H17#3) 229 53,209 - 53,209
11,223,649 (7,953,041) 3,270,608
Notes: Htet
1. Regarding the share options granted on 15 June 2009, 6 October 1. RR=ZZBZNFASAT+THA =TT

2009 and 4 February 2010, 50% of which shall be exercised in a
period commencing two years from the date of grant and
expiring on the tenth anniversary from the date of grant. The
balance of 50% of the share options shall be exercised in a
period commencing three years from the date of grant and
expiring on the tenth anniversary from the date of grant.

2. Regarding the share options granted on 9 July 2010, 50% of
which shall be exercised in a period commencing two years
from the date of grant and expiring on the date falling one day
preceding the tenth anniversary from the date of grant. The
balance of 50% of the share options shall be exercised in a
period commencing three years from the date of grant and
expiring on the date falling one day preceding the tenth
anniversary from the date of grant.

&, Regarding the share options granted on 23 June 2011 and 31
December 2012, 50% of which shall be exercised in a period
commencing one year from the date of grant and expiring on the
date falling one day preceding the tenth anniversary from the
date of grant. The balance of 50% of the share options shall be
exercised in a period commencing two years from the date of
grant and expiring on the date falling one day preceding the
tenth anniversary from the date of grant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MR EME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE—ZF=

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, there was no share-based payment expense in
relation to share options granted to employees and
non-employees of the Group.

The fair value of the services received by the Group
is measured by the reference to the fair value of the
share options granted as consideration because the
fair value of the services cannot be measured
reliably.

The outstanding share options as at 31 December
2020 had a weighted average remaining contractual
life of 1 year (2020: 0.5 years).

At 31 December 2021, the Company had 53,209
(2020: 3,270,608) share options outstanding under
the Share Option Schemes, which represented
approximately 0.0098% (2020: 0.6%) of the
Company’s shares in issue at that date. Share
options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

30. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

(a)

Employee retirement benefit

The Group enrolled all Hong Kong employees in the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF"”) Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group under the control of trustees. The
retirement benefit cost for the MPF Scheme charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represents contributions paid to the fund by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

—F+-H=1—HIFE

BT 8 ()
b) (%)
RBE-_T-_—FR-_ZF_FF

(a)

TZA=+—RHILFE  HER
BYASEEBNMIFEBZER
BAB RO AKX -

BRI 2 At BIEEER] 5t
FHE MAKEREREHCREZ
ARBEDNSEE/RERLEZ
BEZ AUEEE -

RZZEZ—F+_A=+—HMH
*ﬂ@Z%%%ZM%$W%T

EHFHAE—F(ZE_ZTF:
05¢)

R—BE-_—F+-_A=+—H"
NN AR IR AR i AT &) 53,209
H( =T T4 : 3,270,608 )
ERERARITE HERART]
M A 2 B 217815 490.0098%
_§_7¢ 0.6%) ° BERRAEI

30. EEREABEX

B THA AR EHNER
KA&KZ%N
EERAKEF
AEERFMAETEREZHR

HIEATES (AR E DTS - 8
BB EEREARBEXEA
PRS2 EEDRTA - RERA
BE R AR 2 BRIEE R EIRIN
BAKAEAEE @ISt 8
RABEZLLREREEZNZ

'f/\/TJ\ °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FEMBHEMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-Z=

30. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Employee retirement benefit (Continued)

The total cost charged to consolidated statement of
profit or loss of approximately HK$121,000 (2020:
HK$107,000) represents contributions paid to these
schemes by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2021.

The Group contributed to certain retirement benefit
schemes based on the wages for the year of those
employees in the PRC. The total cost charged to
consolidated statement of profit or loss of
approximately HK$149,000 (2020: HK$65,000)
represented the social insurance expenses paid in
the PRC by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2021.

There was no forfeited contribution under the MPF
Scheme and certain retirement benefit schemes in
the PRC which may be used by the Group to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years.

Five highest paid individuals

During the year ended 31 December 2021, three
(2020: two) of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group were directors of the
Company, whose emolument are disclosed in note
5.

Details of the emoluments of the other two (2020:
three) individual for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and
other benefits

Retirement benefit scheme
contributions

— A=t —ALEE

¥ R MEAER
RIRBA GBI

(a)

(b)

30. EEREAFX (&)

BERKER (&)

RiZFEERRMNB 2 BK K
#9121,0008 T(Z T T F :
107,000/ 70) © BIARSEEREZE
B —F+ZA=1+—HIHF
EERZEFFEI M2 HaK -

AEERBETFREENFHHE
%Eumm FTEIMRR - RERE B
= & B 2 B 2N 49 149,000 7%
TT(ZZE T4 : 65,0008 7C) 1
REERBE-_T-_—F+_A
=t+t—HLEFERFEENMZH
ZREMAX -

W ORI R I & 51 &I s T E
RIRBHNET 8 2 7R - REER]
MARREERAZFHIRD &
IR o

AfuEmSHMAL

RBE-F_—FF+-_A=1—
BILFE  AEERSHHNE
ZALH ZR(ZE_TF:
ME) AT RARAESE - KB
SPMIEI5HEE o

 E R F R T _FF
+TZA=+—HLEFE EF®

Z(CE_TFE =F) ALTHEN
ESFEBOT ¢
2020
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FH T FBT
2,63b
42
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FeaMBHEME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE_—FE-——#F1+_-HA=+—HIFE

30. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued) 30.

31.

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments were within the following bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /7T % 1,500,000 7 7T

EBEEAFEX (&)
(b) HfuZEFHMA L ()
e F AR -

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTHF
Number of Number of
employees employees

BEAH BEAH

RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into
the following material related party transactions during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

(a) Key management personnel compensation

Key management includes executive directors of the
Company, financial controllers and company
secretary of the Group. The compensation paid or
payable to key management for employee services
is shown below:

. FREATERRXS

iR ﬁﬁ‘“iﬁ%ﬁ%iﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ?@%@l\*
REBEE_F_—FR_F_FF+_—
A=1t—RHLEFE  "EEFMZ TR
TERBHEALRS -

(a) FEEBASHE
TEEEABBRARRMNITE

= UBBRERAEENQEW
E-EERKENHENER

Salaries, allowances and e R EEMET
other benefits
Retirement benefit scheme RRBFIFT IR

contributions

ERABZRENT
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
4,747
42
4,789
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEHREME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

31. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Shareholders’ loan

On 1 July 2021, the Company entered into a loan
facilities agreement with Wonderland International
Investment Holdings Limited ("Wonderland
Holdings"”), a controlling shareholder of the
Company, with a facility amount of HK$7 million. The
loan was interest bearing at the rate of 3% per
annum. On 6 December 2021, the Company entered
into another loan facilities agreement with
Wonderland Holdings with a facility amount of
HK$13 million, which is non-interest bearing. The
Company has drawn an accumulated loan amount of
approximately HK$10.0 million as at 31 December
2021. Both loan facilities were unsecured and
repayable at the end of twelve months from the
signing date of the loan facilities agreement which
were classified as current liabilities in the
consolidated statements of financial position as at 31
December 2021.

On 27 January 2021, the Company entered into a
loan facilities agreement with Mr. Pan Lihui, the
executive director and a shareholder of the Company,
with a facility amount of US$10 million. The
Company has drawn a loan amount of approximately
US$25,000 (approximately to HK$198,000) as at 31
December 2021. The loan was interest bearing at
the rate of 3% per annum, unsecured and repayable
at the end of twelve month from the signing date of
the loan facilities agreement which was classified as
current liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021.

BE T - —F{+_A=+—HItFEF

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MR EME(])

For the year ended 31 December 2021

31. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

Loan from a fellow subsidiary

On 28 August 2020, the Company entered into a
loan facilities agreement with Wonderland
International Finance Limited (“Wonderland
Finance"”), the wholly-owned subsidiary of
Wonderland International Financial Holdings Limited,
a then controlling shareholder of the Company, with
a facility amount of HK$10 million. The Company had
drawn a loan amount of approximately HK$272,000
as at 31 December 2020. The loan was interest
bearing at the rate of 10% per annum, unsecured
and repayable at the end of twelve month from the
date of drawdown which was classified as current
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020.

On 4 January 2021, the Company entered into a loan
facilities agreement based on the loan facilities
agreement with Wonderland Finance signed on 28
August 2020 increasing the facility amount to HK$20
million with interest rate of 3% per annum. On 1 July
2021, the Company entered into an supplemental
agreement based on the loan facilities signed on 4
January 2021 granting a loan facility of HK$13 million.
On 5 December 2021, the Company entered into
another loan facilities agreement with Wonderland
Finance with a facility amount of HK$13 million with
interest rate of 3% per annum. The Company has
drawn a loan amount of approximately HK$20.2
million as at 31 December 2021. Both loan facilities
were interest bearing, unsecured and repayable at
the end of twelve month from the signing date of
the loan facilities agreement which were classified
as current liabilities in the consolidated statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2021. The
loan was denominated in HKS$.

e T - —Ff+_A=+—HItFE

(c)

31. EREALTERERS (F)

RERRME LT ZER

RZE-_ZTEFNA=-+/H K
NAEEBEHERMEARA A
([EEMBE ] BEARAERZ
TR IR R EE B S IR A R
NRAIZEEMBRAR)FILER
BmEHE  MESEAI0BEE
TLeRZEEF+ZRA=+—
H' AARBERDNERESELY
272,000 7T ° Z B FIE FEFI =X
10% &1 8« EIIF - BAERER
BEffRET+ =@ A& REFEE -
ERZZT_F+=-—A=+—H
ZIREMBRARARS AR A

g

R-ZZE-_—F—AMNAH ' NAF
BEER-E-_FTENAZ+N
HEREE R LA E R EE W
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBI RMEE (])

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZ—-ZF—

31. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(d) Amount due to a fellow subsidiary

The advance is unsecured, non-interest bearing, and
repayable on demand.

(e)

Related party transactions

— = A=+ — AR

31.

E@Ekinﬂﬁ?&&% (nﬁ)

(d) EAEZRKEXRRE

BREER - AR RIRERE
= .

(e) BEHAEALRS

2021 2020
—B--F —T_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest expenses paid/payable to AAT AL, E
FERAX
— Wonderland Finance — EEWB 743
— Mr. Pan Lihui — EUBEE -
— Wonderland Holdings — EEER =
Sales of goods to Shenyang Oriental Rl m%ﬁﬁﬁﬁz
Ginza Pullman Hotel Management EBBEERA
Company Limited, a related company ($M§‘E$T %'JZ
which was controlled by Mr. Li Sen BEAR)HEER 123

The above-mentioned transactions were conducted
in the normal course of business, the interest
expenses and sales of goods were charged at terms
mutually agreed by the relevant parties and
companies.

32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any
significant capital commitments (2020: nil).

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2020: nil).
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33.

FRARXZTIRIERERBBEPET
MASFXRHEEMZEY T kA
AR 175 E B 15K URER o

BAESE
R-ZE_—F+-_HA=t—8H" 4§
B EEMNEREAAE(ZT_F
FE) -
HAEE

R-B_—F+-_H=+—8H" &%
BYEEMEALRBE(ZZT-F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FeaMBHEME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE_—FE-——#F1+_-HA=+—HIFE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 34. KAAHBRARRFESE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) AT ZBBEMRRE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AT ZRE -
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JrE U BT B8 A B R IE 362,952 437,435
Deposits, prepayments and e -~ TR T R E AL U
other receivables HIE 481 327
Bank and cash balances R17 MR © M8k 7,114 180
370,547 437,942
Total assets EEHAE 370,547 437,942
EQUITY =

Capital and reserves attributable Z<2 T H A E{EE A
to the owners of the Company [ &

Share capital f% 72 27,120
Reserves Eie] 375,207
Total equity S saERE 220,809 402,327
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables HAth J& 5 /IR 10,239 23,707
Shareholder’s loan R E K 10,184 -
Loan from a fellow subsidiary RrE H%[‘ﬁ%/& TZE%’\ 20,234 272
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEHMT% AIFIA 109,081 11,565
Amount due to a related company fE{}#d:E ,TAIE - 71
Total liabilities BEHEE 149,738 35,615
Total equity and liabilities EEREEHAE 370,547 437,942
The statement of financial position has been AR REETFeN _E_—
approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March F=RA=1+— EITtt/E)SZEETﬁlJE
2022 and is signed on its behalf by: ERREFSHE
Li Gang Jiang Senlin
Z EZ/M
Director Director
EF o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MBmERME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—FT-——F+-A=+—HIFE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 4. KPR BERRRRFEEED

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (&)
(Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) EQTEEES
Share
Share Capital option Other  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total

RoRE  EARE RRERE  HtRe iR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR THT ThEL TR Thn  TEn

Asat 1 January 2020 R=Z-T4-FA—H 1,092,712 871 hh,h84 391,515 (1,175,904) 364,778
Comprehensive loss 2EFE
Loss for the year EEER = = - - (5254)  (5,254)

Transactions with ownersin SEANEEAZ
their capacity as owners BRETZRS

Placing of shares note 27(l)  BRER (W 271) 15,683 - - - - 15683
Lapse of share options BRELY - - (18,381) - 18,381 -
Total transactions with owners BB ALER A S H

in their capacity as owners  E{7Z X 5B 15,683 - (18,381) - 18,381 15,683
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-EF

+-A=1t-8 1,108, 3% 871 37,203 391,515 (1162,777) 375,207

As at 1 January 2021 RZE--F¥-f-H 1,108,395 8N 37,203 391,515 (1,162,777) 375,207
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the year EEER (181518)  (181,518)

Transactions with ownersin S2EE ANEBAZ
their capacity as owners ~ HRETZRS
Lapse of share options BRELN

As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE=--&
—“A=1-H 1,108,395 LYAl 90 391,515 (1,307,182) 193,689
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

& M35 8 RO (48)

HE—T-—F+=—A=+—HIFFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

35. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a)

Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of each director is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2021:

Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Li Gang FRIEAE
Mr. Pan Lihui EBRE
Mr. Jiang Senlin ZHRMEE
Independent Non-executive B F#TE=
Directors
Mr. Zhong Jian ERlkE
Mr. Du Hongwei HARERL
Mr. See Tak Wah i
(Resigned on 9 July 2021) (R=T=——%
+ANBEHE)
Mr. Li Jinyuan FRTAE
(Resigned on 15 March 2021)  (R=Z=—4%
= ATRAFT)
Mr. Liu Qin ElESits
(Appointed on 9 July 2021) (R=B=—F
T ANBEZE)
Total Bt

35. EEREANRER

(a) EEM
EEEFMBEIIMT ¢
BE-®--5+=-H=+-8
I :

Emoluments paid to or receivable by the person in respect of
a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

—EALREAES (BRATAARANBAAFKZES) 2RY

Director’s fee

EzHe
HK$'000
TER

allowances and

EEXNAERzME

Salaries, Employer's
contribution to
pension scheme
BiresHE
FESEE
HK$'000
TR

other benefits
E D 4191
Hibg#
HK$'000
TET

Discretionary
bonus Total
g
HK$'000
THT

st
HK$'000
THET

RueERERER AT /2021 45
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FEMBHEMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z - ZFE-—F+-F=+—HIFFZE

35. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 35. EEEMRELR (E)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EE=ME (H)
For the year ended 31 December 2020: BHE TFE+_A=+—H
JJ:@E :

Emoluments paid to or receivable by the person in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

—EANIHECER(BERATARREMBRRASH ES) L RBEEXARER 2B S

Salaries, Employee’s
allowances and  contribution to Discretionary
Director'sfee  other benefits ~ pension scheme bonus Total
e 2R RREHE
BN H @7 BEHR WigTEa @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT AT AR TAT TAT
Executive Directors YTES
Mr. Li Gang FRRERZTTF

(Appointed on 29 June 2020) A= tHEEZE) - 394 5 = 399
Mr. Pan Lihui BUBEE(RZFTF

(Appointed on 29 June 2020)  NAZTHBEZEME) = 394 5 = 399
Mr. Jiang Senlin ZHRMEE - 780 6 - 786
Mr. Zhong Jinhua BYERE(RZT-2F

(Retired on 26 June 2020) NAZTRBER) - 528 - - 528
Mr. Li Sen FREERZTTE

(Retired on 26 June 2020) NAZTABRE) - 352 - - 352
Independent Non-executive BV FHTES

Directors
Mr. Zhong Jian BRl%E 180 - - - 180
Mr. Du Hongwei HEREE(RZZ-24F

(Appointed on 29 June 2020) A= tHHEEZE) 91 - - < 91
Mr. See Tak Wah MEELE(RZE_FF

(Appointed on 10 August NA+HEZE)

2020) Al - - - 71
Mr. Li Jinyuan FRIAE 89 - - - 89
Ms. Liu Yan ELT(RZTTF

(Resigned on 29 June 2020)  ~A=tHBEHE) 180 = = = 180
Mr. Wu Jiwei RERZE(RZZZF

(Appointed on 29 June 2020 AR+ NBEZRFE

and resigned on 10 August VR-Z-FF

2020) NATHEHE) 31 - - - 31
Total ozt 642 2,448 16 - 3,106
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FeaMBHEME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE—ZF=

35. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by
any directors in respect of their other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking during
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2021: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to directors as compensation
for the early termination of the appointment during
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No consideration was provided to third parties for
making available of director’s services during the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there
was no arrangement in relation to loans, quasi-loans
and other dealing arrangements in favour of the
directors of the Company, the controlled bodies
corporate by and the connected entities with such
director (2020: nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in note 31, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to Group's business to which the Company or any of
the subsidiaries of the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year ended 31 December 2021 or at
any time during the year (2020: nil).

36. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31
March 2022.

— A= —ALEE

35. EEEAMNER ()

36.

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

SR

FAaBBHREER

ESRNEFN

REBE-_ZT_—F+_A=+—
BIESE HMESENEAHE
BARNRSENB QA EHENE
i AR 7 7 S A Sk U (E AT R (K A=
M(ZFZ—F: \|)-

BEERIEER

REBEE-ZT-_—F+=-A=+—
BIEFE  SERERIRATRLE
?Fﬁiﬁ&ﬂﬁ&._?_g
FfE)-

RERHESREMATE=
BRE

BT —#F+-H=+—H
HFE - BEREREESRS
M FTE=ZAZRE(ZZE-F
FE) e

%1_2:—¢+:ﬂ5+—5
LEE BEEFRARQ T

= REFZXRE %Uﬁ@&%ﬁ@
ERCER EERMEMRS
E%H%Zﬂﬁﬂ_g_gi

BEERXD  ZHEREHNZE
KER

FRISEEST MBEESN - AR
AARBHMEB ARG ERAEE
EBR N EARNREEHEKE
%%ﬁiﬁ%éﬂ%ﬁi_g
St R
R 2% 2 A B ifﬁ)&

CEEXRS  RHEREH(ZE
ZEF M| o

BRH®mEK

THE=EE=F

=t AEESSHERRENE -
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AFEMBERE

A summary of the published consolidated results and the $$@EAZE££1IETEK$FZE NPERE S
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five 45 - &8 EBENBEBRESHIET -
financial years is set as below:

For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1+—-HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
et T -TF —T-NF T\ T +F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER ThET TEx FET TET

Results HiE
Revenue W 321,844 54,054 56,883 885,871 59,228
Loss for the year FRERE (357,773) (25,776) (25,086) (14,531) (93,900)
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
bl —T-TF —T-NF T \F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FTAT FTAET FAT ThAx
Assets and liabilities BERER
Total assets BEBE 555,312 879,226 811,167 813,900 1,185,302
Total liabilities BEBRE CEZWEEIR  (309,514)  (272,894)  (238,109)  (582,064)
Capital and reserves AR R m 569,712 538273 575791 603,238
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